TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING

THURSDAY TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS
NOVEMBER 20, 2025 —2:00 P.M. 4300 S. ATLANTIC AVENUE, PONCE INLET, FL

SUNSHINE LAW NOTICE FOR BOARD MEMBERS — Notice is hereby provided that one
or more members of the Town’s various boards may attend and speak at this meeting.

A complete copy of the materials for this agenda is available at Town Hall.

1. CALL TO ORDER.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.
3. ROLL CALL.

NOTE: Citizens who wish to speak during Public Participation about any subject that is not on the meeting
agenda should fill out the Citizen Participation Request form and submit it to the Town Clerk prior to the
start of the meeting.

4. INAUGURATION:
A. Administer Oath of Office to Mayor and Councilmembers—Elect.
~~~~ Break for Refreshments ~~~~
B. Reconvene Council meeting.

C. Appointment of Vice-Mayor.

D. Appointment of Council representatives for interlocal organizations:
1. Primary and Alternate representatives to the Volusia County Elected
Officials Roundtable.
2. Primary and Alternate representatives to the Volusia-Flagler Transportation

Planning Organization.

3. Representative to the First Step Shelter, Inc. Board of Directors. — any
change requires confirmation by the Daytona Beach City Commission.

S. ADDITIONS, CORRECTIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA.

6. CITIZENS’ PARTICIPATION - The Town of Ponce Inlet encourages engagement by citizens
via a variety of means. This is an opportunity for our citizens to talk to us collectively on any subject that
is not identified on the meeting agenda. The Town’s Rules for Conducting Town Council meetings are set
forth in Resolution 2024-09 and include the following guidelines:

Page 1 of 3



11/20/25 Regular Council Meeting

o Citizens are provided with 5 minutes at each meeting to speak on one or more issues that are not
otherwise placed on the meeting agenda.

o Please introduce yourself with your name and address clearly for the record.

o Share with us your thoughts, ideas, and opinions,; we want to hear them.

o Under our rules, all questions and comments are directed to the Mayor.
While some questions may be able to be addressed at this meeting, others may require research or more
information than we have readily available from our staff, so we may have to defer the response to you
until we have that information. Also, depending on the type of issue, we may place the matter on a properly
noticed subsequent meeting agenda. As a Council, we welcome the opportunity to hear from you and hope
you will speak with us not only during Citizen Participation but outside of these meetings. We understand
the formal nature of this meeting, but rest assured, we want to hear from you, we want to address your
concerns, and we are appreciative of your involvement.

7. PROCLAMATIONS, PRESENTATIONS, AND AWARDS:

A. The U.S. Naval Sea Cadet program. — presented by Petty Officer 3" Class Davin
Mansfield.

8. CONSENT AGENDA - Items on the consent agenda are defined as routine in nature that do not
warrant detailed discussion or individual action by the Council; therefore, all items remaining on the
consent agenda shall be approved and adopted by a single motion, second and vote by the Town Council.
Items on the consent agenda are not subject to discussion. Any member of the Town Council may remove
any item from the consent agenda simply by verbal request at the Town Council meeting. Removing an
item from the consent agenda does not require a motion, second or a vote; it would simply be a unilateral
request of an individual Council member and this item would then be added as the last item under New
Business. As with all agenda items, the public will have the opportunity to comment prior to a motion being
placed on the floor and their comment(s) may persuade the Council to remove the item from the Consent
Agenda and place under New Business for discussion.

A. Request for Use of Town Property: Operation Changing Lives 5k.
B. Annual Financial Report from Citizens for Ponce Inlet (C4PI).
C. Approval of the Town Council Regular meeting minutes — October 16, 2025.

9. OLD/NEW BUSINESS ITEMS PREFERRED AT THE BEGINNING OF THE

MEETING:

A. Request for support to rename Lighthouse Point Park to James Milton Lighthouse
Point Park.

B. Purchase of vacant property at 58 South Turn Circle for future stormwater
improvements.
1. Resolution 2025-17 — Supplemental appropriation from the Land

Acquisition Fund.

2. Approval of contract.

Page 2 of 3



11/20/25 Regular Council Meeting

10. PUBLIC HEARINGS / QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS: None.
11. PUBLIC HEARINGS / NON-QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS: Nore.
12. ORDINANCES (FIRST READING) AND RESOLUTIONS:

A. Ordinance 2025-08 — 1*' Reading — Amendment to the Land Use and Development
Code (LUDC) Section 3.20 — Farmers Markets.

13. OLD BUSINESS: None.
14.  NEW BUSINESS:

A. Approval of Task Assignment with Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. for the
Stormwater Utility Fee Implementation (Phase 2).

15.  FROM THE TOWN COUNCIL:
A. Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5
B. Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4
C. Councilmember White, Seat #3
D. Councilmember Milano, Seat #2
E. Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1

16.  FROM THE TOWN MANAGER.

17. FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY.

18. CITIZENS’ PARTICIPATION - The Town of Ponce Inlet encourages engagement by citizens
via a variety of means. This is another opportunity for our citizens to talk to us collectively for 2 minutes
before closure of this meeting regarding reports provided by the Town Council, Town Manager, or Town
Attorney in items 14-16 (only) of the meeting agenda.

19. ADJOURNMENT.

Upcoming Town Council meeting(s):
e Wednesday, December 10, 2025, 10:00 AM — Special Town Council Meeting.
e Thursday, December 18, 2025, 2:00 PM — Regular Town Council Meeting.

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Town Council with respect to any matter considered at a
meeting or hearing, he/she will need a record of the proceedings and that for such purpose, he/she may need to ensure
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the
appeal is to be based. Persons who require accommodation to attend this meeting should contact the Ponce Inlet
Town Hall at 236-2150 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting to request such assistance.

Page 3 of 3




Meeting Date: 11/20/2025

Agenda Item: 4

Report to Town Council

Topic: Inauguration

Summary:

A. Administer the Oath of Office to Mayor and Councilmembers
— Elect.

~~~Break for Refreshments~~~

B. Reconvene Council meeting.
C. Appointment of Vice-Mayor.

D. Appointment of Council representatives for interlocal
organizations:

1. Primary and Alternate representatives to the Volusia
County Elected Officials Roundtable.

2.  Primary and Alternate representatives to the Volusia-
Flagler Transportation Planning Organization.

3.  Representative to the First Step Shelter, Inc. Board of
Directors — any change requires confirmation by the
Daytona Beach City Commission.

Requested by: Ms. Cherbano, Town Clerk

Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager




Meeting Date: 11/20/2025

Agenda Item: 7

Report to Town Council

Topic: Proclamations, Presentations, and Awards.

Summary:

A. The U.S. Naval Sea Cadet program. — presented by Petty

Officer 3" Class Davin Mansfield.

Suggested motion: None required.

Requested by: Mayor Paritsky

Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager




Meeting Date: 11/20/2025

Agenda Item: 8

Report to Town Council

Topic: Consent Agenda

A. Request for Use of Town Property: Operation Changing Lives 5k.

B.  Annual Financial Report from Citizens for Ponce Inlet (C4PI).

C. Approval of the Town Council Regular meeting minutes. — October
16, 2025.

Summary: See attached documents.

Suggested motion: To approve the Consent agenda as presented.

Requested by: Ms. Alex, Cultural Services Manager
Mr. Disher, Town Manager
Ms. Cherbano, Town Clerk

Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager




Item 8-A

MEMORANDUM

TOWN OF PONCE INLET, CULTURAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT
The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community
excellence while ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar
To: Michael E. Disher, AicP, Town Manager
From: Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager

Date: November 6, 2025
Subject:  Request for Use of Town Property: 2026 Operation Changing Lives 5K

MEETING DATE: November 20, 2025

Ms. Cherise Wintz has submitted her special event permit application through the Cultural
Services Department for the Operation Changing Lives 5K. This event was previously held in
Ponce Inlet from 2010-2019 and again in 2024-2025; it is scheduled once again for Saturday,
January 3, 2026.

Organizers expect approximately 200 runners. Requested Town support includes the closure of
both the boat ramp and boat ramp trailer parking lot. Street closures will occur along the race route
with both Police and volunteers at intersections.

This event does not meet the Town’s Special Event criteria for co-sponsorship. For this event, staff
must refer to Sec. 51-8(d) below,

(d) For events that do not meet the definition of Town-sponsored event under Sec. 51-2
described above, a written request shall be delivered to the town’s cultural services
department at least 60 days prior to the event by an applicant if use of town facilities,
parking on town property, and/or street closures are found to be required for the event based
on the findings of the town’s special event review committee. Town staff may provide a
report and recommendation to the town council for review.

The applicant has submitted her request for the use of Town property during the event along with
the special event permit application packet (Attachment 1).

The applicant is responsible for all special event application fees, the pavilion rental fee, all staff
personnel fees, and providing proof of insurance.

Staff recommends approval of the request for use of town property as the criteria have been met.

Attachments:
1. Application Packet 2026 Operation Changing Lives 5K



Attachment 1

Town of Ponce Inlet
Cultural Services Department

Request Form: Event Use of Town Property
Pursuant to Chapter 51 of the Code of Ordinances

This co-sponsorship request form must be filled out accurately and completely and submitted along with a
special event permit application. Incomplete forms cannot be reviewed.

This form and all supporting documents may be submitted up to 365 days in advance of the event, but no
less than 60 days prior to the event date. If the applicant desires their co-sponsorship request to be heard at
a specific Town Council meeting, these documents must be submitted no less than 20 days prior to the
desired Council meeting date.

Request forms for event use of Town property will be presented to Council for review for events not eligible
for co-sponsorship. Regardless of whether the event qualifies as a special event, or is eligible for co-

sponsorship, an applicant’s co-sponsorship request shall comply with the content requirements below.

For event applicants requesting us of town’s means of advertising, email jalex(@ponce-inlet.org

Event Name: @ﬁ é//ﬁ;,é]ﬁ*/ oN/ C/—(W_.‘)Q J G /| pes . 51//( [l_fjf}{ /&LJ,QQ;'/Q
Event Date(s): [-3 - 202 Event Location:__// C;? htthos,

Business/ Organization Hosting Event: O/ 204770  CHAN/ 6-/ 1 & LIVE)
Event Applicant/ Contact: @%}”éﬁ&}&@ ZAQ /72

Please provide a brief description of the event and any important details:

WMk 2Zuaw 5 K

Please select and state your event needs that require permission from the Town:

Town permission required:

CAC1osure of boat ramp

[AClosure of boat ramp trailer parking lot
D/Placement of temporary signs on Town property
[AStreet closures

EUse of Town facilities

[ A Parking on Town property

|Z]’Other:

Town of Pon::-e inlet 4300 5. Aflantic Arve. Ponce Inlet FL. 32127 P: 386-322-6703 September 2023 Page 1 of 3



1. Estimated number of event participants:
200

2. Estimated number of any animals by type:

O

3. Purpose of the event:

CHEATY [ an pra AL Ex forn OCL

4. Nature and the types of activities that will occur.

peuk | Wplle

5. Provide a copy of indemnification in favor of the Town and included as part of the application,
which shall be executed by an authorized representative of the applicant. The organization will not be
required to indemnify the Town for the negligent acts of the Town's employees or agents.

@ Attached

6. Describe any public right of way, property, buildings, facilities, or equipment utilized:

sy /zu,qf/«/mé O RO

7. County roadway is to be used:
O Yes- County right-of-way use permit is attached @ No

8. The event serves a valid public purpose benefiting the town and/ or its residents and the community by
either-
O Providing a local commemoration of a national holiday; or
Providing historical, educational, cultural enrichment and/or recreational experiences to Ponce
Inlet residents and the public.
Describe how:

K€ Creostsono! Lyiperlevce ucE T et
5] Deprts Wil be able 4o payt/e 1pote,
) . oo ,(_HQE/Z.M CAL I S aA S‘C,g_,/p /,/70,@;6‘“’
/}?.::z//uy (AL I etz w2l ol M%a /A'/ Det gz

Lommioif-y .
7

Town of Ponce Inlet 4300 §. Atlanfic Ave.iPcnce Iniel FL. 32127 P: 386-322-4703 September 2023 Page 2 of 3



As the applicant, I certify that upon request, I will provide event space or facilities to established Ponce Inlet
organizations and clubs during the event without cost. (If granting of such space will constitute a bona fide undue
hardship to the event organizer, the applicant shall include a waiver of this request in their co-sponsorship request along with the
reason for the hardship on the bottom of page one of this form.)

C%ﬂﬁ/\/wj; éd/d}a /(/(j[/ /’8035_

Applicant signature Date

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY:

Application received bth\C/ Alezpo Date: !\ ’ > lq_s

Event needs requiring permission from Town:
losure of boat ramp
[BdClosure of boat ramp trailer parking
%Plaeement of temporary signs on Town property
Street closures
Use of Town facilities
Parking on Town property
Other:

wan of Ponce Inlef 4300 §. Ai;fantic Ave. Ponce Inlet FL. 32127 P: 386-322-6703 September 2023 Page 3 of 3



Town of Ponce Inlet
. Cultural Services Department
| 4300 S. Atlantic Avenue

SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT APPLICATION
Pursuant to Chapter 51 of the Code of Ordinances

Ponce Inlet, FL 32127 Permit #:
386-322-6703 Submittal Date:
FEE PAID:

APPLICATIONS MAY BE SUBMITTED UP TO 365 DAYS IN ADVANCE OF THE EVENT, BUT NO LESS THAN
28 DAYS PRIOR TO EVENT DATE, OR 60 DAYS PRIOR IF REQUESTING TOWN CO-SPONSORSHIP.

Please submit the following information with your application:
e Asite plan of the event area(s) with all applicable information requested below.
e If the event is on town property, a certificate of insurance showing the town as additional insured in the amount of
$1,000,000 is required.

SECTION 1: EVENT INFORMATION

Event Name: O PEZ TS 007  Chlgad Glidd b Ll iES

Event Location:

LIGHT HouSE i
Date(s) of Event: Event Hours: 17-; 2o Staet i Yy
/ =t 3 o Za 2z é’:) fﬂ”j@’/ _ (i)..g:)
Brief Event Description:
5K wpgk = gum
Estimated Attendance: Repeat Event: @ VYes ONo

200

SECTION 2: APPLICANT INFORMATION

Business/ Organization Hosting Event:

Authorized Head of Business/ Organization: (7 /,£7,/5 ;= 10y 72

Phone Number: 37/, -3 7.3 _ 2086 Email Address;gf}gya,(j ) S?Q‘D (/O oo Copg

Event Applicant/ Contact:

Day-of Phone Number: Email Address:

S £

SATNE

Mailing Address:

SECTION 3: ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Please answer the questions below. If answering “Yes,” indicate the location(s) on your site plan, providing any

additional details on a separate sheet if needed.
Traffic Control Required? @Yes @&No

ONo Parade? OYes
@Nc

*Provide a map and streets to be closed*
Portable Restrooms? O No

@ Yes

Private Security Firm? (O Yes
(O Yes @No

Shuttle Transportation? Name of Security Firm

T 00N

Off-Site Parking Required? (@)Yes ONo
=~ JAY

*Provide written agreement with property owner(s) and number of spaces needed*

LI&HTHOoUSE /@

Provide a site—ﬁls{ﬁ ShoWi'ﬁg'ﬁ'tHE“'i%gé?ﬁé"f‘(ﬁf Al Vghicular (including shuttle) and pedestrian ingress & egress to and from the event.

)
o A Al
@
&
!ﬂ.
<
20,7 R A e



SECTION 4: TEMPORARY USE - Additional Permits may be required.

Please answer the questions below. If answering “Yes,” indicate the location(s) on your site plan, providing any additional
details on a separate sheet if needed.

Barricades Required? O Yes @No Traffic Cones Required?  @Yes  (ONo

Amplified Sound? ! @Yes (ONo High-Intensity Lighting? > (O Yes  (@No
*Provide specifications™

# of Tents (over 10°x10”)? g # Stages/ Structures?? /g # of Signs/ Banners? 4 g

Tent Size 3 (if over 10°x10°) Stage Dimensions: Sign permit application submitted to
Building Division? (OYes ggN/A
If yes, permit #:

How do you plan to collect and remove trash and litter during and after the event?

Voluwtaies
Food Prepared On-Site? 5 (0)Yes @No

# of Mobile Food Vendors (MFV)? ¢ # Parking Spaces Required for MFVs?

/1/ b7 *Include on your site plan AJ £l
DBPR Food Service License # / DBPR Alcoholic Beverage License # 7
*Attach copy of License /\/ J *Attach copy of License /(j O

Supplementary Regulations for Special Events:

1- See Code of Ordinances Sec. 34-93 for sound limitations and Code of Ordinances Sec. 34-94 for permit requirements to exceed maximum
allowable noise level limits and restricted hours.

2- See Code of Ordinances Sec. 34-99.1-5 for Town policy on nuisance lighting, requirements to reduce light trespass and glare. This section
does not prohibit the temporary exterior lighting used for civic celebration and promotion associated with a permitted special event.

3- Tents larger than 10°x10° and stages require a fire inspection and building inspection in addition to a building permit

4- See LUDC Sec. 3.30.6 and Resolution 2011-03 for temporary sign regulations. To prevent signs from interfering with public utilities, contact]
Sunshine State One Call at 1-800-561-6720 prior to digging for sign installation.

5- Code of Ordinances Sec. 46-3.a.4: Use of any portable cooking equipment is prohibited in all Town parks except in designated areas of
Davies Lighthouse Park. Within designated areas, only propane and electric portable equipment is permitted — no charcoal.

6- LUDC Sec. 3.34: Mobile Food vending is the sale of food, either prepared on location or pre-packaged, from a mobile food vending vehicle.

Mobile food vendors shall comply with regulations from this section and shall be subject to an inspection pursuant to the NFPA and Florida
Fire Prevention Code.

7- Code of Ordinances Sec. 6-7.a: It is unlawful for any person to consume or possess any alcoholic beverages on public streets, sidewalks
within the town, or on any town property or public park located in the town except as provided in the Code or as approved by Town Council.

I hereby state that the above information is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge. I further understand and agree to any
and all conditions and costs of the required permits. 1 understand that the Town of Ponce Inlet assumes no liability for this
event. I hereby agree to defend, hold harmless, and indemnify the Town, at the Town’s option, from any and all demands,
claims, suits, actions and legal proceedings brought against the Town in connection with this event, whether threatened or
otherwise, to the full extent as permitted by the law of the State of Florida. This provision shall survive the term of this agreement
and shall remain in full force and effect until the expiration of the time for the institution of any action at law or equity or
admipdstrative action agajnst the Town under either federal law or the laws of Florida.
Nov5-2025

Date Signed

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF VOLUSIA

This document was sworn to (or affirmed) and subscribed before me by me of E{physlcal presence or O online notanzatlon this S'Wl day of
November ) 2025', he/she is personally known to me or has presented df v, BerflO11.

S5 JULIE COTTON
g 2: , 2 &m Notary stamp/ seal:

fi hw'"‘ Notary Public - State of Florida
Nofﬁry Public, State of Florida

BRITE " commission # HH 727463
LI My Comm. Expires Oct 2, 2029



Parking at critter Fleet, lower
level of the lighthouse,
lighthouse park

Run starts at the boat ramp heads North up Peninsula turnaround is between Cindy Lane and
loggerhead head back south down peninsula to Beach Street, Turn right head to Sailfish Drive
turn left head back out to Peninsula make a right turn finish line back at the boat ramp.

Volunterrs will be on every street corner throughout the route police will be at Beech Street in
Inlet Harbour Road



gROM

e N, .\:Ag,d-%b

, J Down the Hatc‘{x




Item 8-B

MEMORANDUM
OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar.

To: Town Council
From: Michael E. Disher, AicP, Town Manager
Date: November 10, 2025

Subject:  Citizens for Ponce Inlet (C4PI) — Annual Accounting Report

MEETING DATE: November 20, 2025

Pursuant to Resolution 2020-16, C4PI has provided the attached information regarding how the
annual $4,000 contribution from the Town was spent.

The Town has provided newsletter articles for five editions of the C4PI newsletter this year, including
the State of the Town address, hurricane preparation and recovery efforts, project updates, the annual
budget process, and many others.

C4PI records and posts Town Council meetings on its website, providing a service to the public not
currently offered by the Town. The Town also provides C4PI with copies of public records upon
request, which C4PI makes available to its members at no charge, pursuant to its agreement with the
Town. In the past, C4PI has also conducted surveys for the Town, such as obtaining feedback to
improvements to the dog park.

In accordance with Resolution 2020-16, $4,000 has been provided in the Town’s approved budget
for C4PI in the current fiscal year to ensure that the newsletter remains available online at no charge
to all Town residents and property owners.

Attachment
C4PI 2025 Annual Accounting Report



November 10, 2025

Mr. Mike Disher, Town Manager
Town of Ponce Inlet

4300 S. Atlantic Avenue

Ponce Inlet, Florida 32127

Re: Citizens for Ponce Inlet Newsletter Agreement
Dear Mr. Disher,

As we enter our third year as a 501(c)(3) nonprofit, the Citizens for Ponce Inlet, Inc, (C4Pi) wants to
reassure the community that our Board and Advisory Board members—all volunteers—remain fully
dedicated to enhancing Ponce Inlet's quality of life. We provide vital services and support to achieve this
goal and we commit to the community through various initiatives. C4Pi delivers important local information
via our newsletters, organizes community engagement opportunities, advocates for residents' needs, and
fosters connections among residents, local businesses, and town officials. We design these efforts, along
with our ongoing projects and programs, to keep Ponce Inlet vibrant, informed, and well-supported for
everyone who lives here.

For over 40 years, C4Pi has distributed newsletters to Ponce Inlet residents. These publications offer
timely updates and valuable insights into town affairs, local history, and community events. We archive all
newsletters on our website (www.c4pi.org), where we provide free and easy access to decades of
intriguing and informative content. We also send our quarterly newsletters, annual State of the Town
Address, and Election Edition directly to members' inboxes to keep them informed and engaged. We also
live stream town council meetings.

In line with the Citizens for Ponce Inlet (C4Pi) Newsletter Agreement with the Town, and as part of
the Town’s $4,000 contribution during the fiscal year 2024-2025, | am providing the following financial
breakdown to produce these newsletters and to live stream council meetings:

Live Stream:

Production costs, including distribution, video hosting, subscriptions, software, and audiovisual
equipment.

Vimeo - $958.50

Dropbox and NSB Hosting Library - $1,199.00

Video Total: $2,157.50

Newsletters:

Design and creation, cloud storage, e-mail subscription services, honorarium tech support, and software.
Quarterly editions

Winter 2025 - $425, Spring- $425, Summer - $425, Fall - $425 = $1,700

State of Town Address - $200

Election Edition - $ 0/ $125

Adobe InDesign- $544.18

Email provider: Constant Contact - $450.45

Newsletter Total: $3,019.63

Newsletters, Video Live Stream, and Archive - Total: $5177.13




We are truly grateful for the Town’s support and the opportunity to include Town-related
information in our newsletter. We trust that the services we provide continue to meet your
expectations, and we look forward to further collaboration in the future. Your ongoing support is
sincerely appreciated.

Warm regards,

%ﬁ"} Albinson

Lynn Albinson, President
Citizens for Ponce Inlet, Inc.

Newsletter Links:

Winter 2025
https://www.c4pi.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/01/C4Pi-Winter-2025-Newsletter.pdf

State of Town Address Feb 2025

https://www.c4pi.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/Ponce-Inlet-State-of-the-Town-Address-Febru
ary-2025.pdf

Spring 2025
https://www.c4pi.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/04/2025-Spring-C4Pi-Newsletter.pdf

Summer 2025
https://www.c4pi.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/2025-Summer-C4Pi-Newsletter.pdf

Fall 2025
https://www.c4pi.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/10/2025-Fall-C4Pi-Newsletter.pdf


https://www.c4pi.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/01/C4Pi-Winter-2025-Newsletter.pdf
https://www.c4pi.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/Ponce-Inlet-State-of-the-Town-Address-February-2025.pdf
https://www.c4pi.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/Ponce-Inlet-State-of-the-Town-Address-February-2025.pdf
https://www.c4pi.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/04/2025-Spring-C4Pi-Newsletter.pdf
https://www.c4pi.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/2025-Summer-C4Pi-Newsletter.pdf
https://www.c4pi.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/10/2025-Fall-C4Pi-Newsletter.pdf

Item 8-C

Town of Ponce Inlet
Town Council
Regular Meeting Minutes
October 16, 2025

1. CALL TO ORDER: Pursuant to proper notice, Mayor Paritsky called the meeting to order
at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at 4300 South Atlantic Avenue, Ponce Inlet, Florida.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Paritsky led the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. ROLL CALL:
Town Council:
Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1
Councilmember Milano, Seat #2
Councilmember White, Seat #3
Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4
Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5

Staff Members Present:

Ms. Alex, Cultural Services Manager
Ms. Cherbano, Town Clerk

Mr. Disher, Town Manager

Ms. Gjessing, Deputy Town Clerk
Chief Glazier, Police Chief

Ms. Hall, Assistant Finance Director
Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director
Mr..Okum, IT Director

Chief Scales, Public Safety Director
Attorney Smith, Town Attorney

Mr. Wargo, Public Works Director

4. ADDITIONS, CORRECTIONS, OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA: Item 6-A was
added to the agenda; Item 13-C was modified; and Item 13-D was added to the agenda.

Mayor Paritsky moved to approve the agenda as amended; seconded by Councilmember Milano.
The motion PASSED 5-0, consensus.

5. CITIZENS PARTICIPATION: Mayor Paritsky opened citizens participation — Ms.
Jennifer Hunt Longmire, 684 Margaritaville Ave, provided a history on her father’s involvement
with protecting the land which became known as Lighthouse Point Park; she requested Council
support in renaming the park to The James Milton Hunt Lighthouse Point Park. Council consensus
to discuss drafting a letter of support at the next regularly scheduled Town Council meeting. Mr.
Robert Bullard, 4802 South Peninsula Drive, corroborated Ms. Longmire’s testimony on her
father’s achievements. Mr. Steve Field, 6 Mar Azul, voiced his opinion regarding the Town’s
budget and auditing process, stipends, and the Town Manager. He urged the Town Council to

Town Council October 16, 2025
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 6



41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86

review the Town’s budget by looking at quarterly actuals. Mr. Mark Oebbecke, 4758 South
Peninsula Drive, complimented the Planning and Development Department and offered
suggestions to make the permitting process more efficient. He commented on the upcoming S.
Peninsula Drive sidewalk expansion project and provided a brief update regarding the Veteran’s
Association Memorial improvements. Ms. Bonni Carney, 38 Coastal Oaks Circle, voiced her
opinion on the Town being overstaffed and urged staff to utilize technology efficiently to reduce
staffing levels; she provided her opinions regarding the management of Town finances; she
commented on proposed projects and evaluating the needs of residents. Mayor Paritsky read an
email into the record from Ms. Lynn Albinson, extending her gratitude for staff for enhancing the
quality of life in the Town. Mayor Paritsky closed citizens participation.

6. PROCLAMATIONS, PRESENTATIONS, AND AWARDS:

A. Proclamation — Domestic Abuse Awareness Month — Mayor Paritsky announced
that she presented a proclamation declaring the month of October 2025 as Domestic Abuse
Awareness Month to the Domestic Abuse Council of Volusia County on September 30, 2025.

7. CONSENT AGENDA: Mayor Paritsky asked if there was any item Council would like to
remove from the consent agenda; there were no requests. Mayor Paritsky asked if there were any
requests from the public — there were none.

A. Request for Use of Town Property: 2025 Daytona 100 Ultramarathon Race.

B. Approval of the Town Council Special meeting minutes — September 3, 2025.

C. Approval of the Town Council Regular meeting minutes — September 18, 2025.

Mayor Paritskymoved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented; seconded by Councilmember
Villanella. The motion PASSED 5-0, consensus:

8. OLD/NEW BUSINESS ITEMS PREFERRED AT THE BEGINNING OF THE
MEETING: None.

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS / QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS: None.
10. PUBLIC HEARINGS / NON-QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS: None.
11. ORDINANCES (FIRST READING) AND RESOLUTIONS: None.
12. OLD BUSINESS: None.
13.  NEW BUSINESS:
A. Request for Co-Sponsorship of the 15" Annual Ponce Inlet Christmas Parade

— December 6, 2025. — Ms. Alex stated the Town’s 15" Annual Christmas Parade will be held on
December 6, 2025, and the applicants have submitted a request for co-sponsorship. She noted two

Town Council October 16, 2025
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 6



87

88

89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132

changes from last year’s request: a new staging area, pending Volusia County approval, and a $151
increase in costs. Staff determined the application meets criteria for approval of co-sponsorship.
Councilmember White questioned whether staff could anticipate any conflicts garnering County
approval; Ms. Alex stated no issues are anticipated and explained the applicants also had to submit
an application to the County for approval. Mayor Paritsky opened public participation — hearing
none, public participation was closed.

Councilmember White made a motion to approve the request for co-sponsorship of the 15" Annual
Christmas Parade; seconded by Councilmember Villanella. The motion PASSED 5-0, consensus.

B. Request for Use of Town Property: Marine Science Center’s 2025 Wildlife
Festival. — Ms. Alex stated the Marine Science Center’s 2025 Wildlife Festival will be held on
November 1, 2025, and will showcase native wildlife and the Center’s animal hospital. The request
includes closure of the boat ramp and boat ramp trailer parking lot; use of the lot for the event
parking; and placement of temporary signs on Town property. Staff determined the criteria for use
of Town property has been met. Mayor Paritsky opened public participation — hearing none, public
participation was closed.

Councilmember Villanella made a motion to approve the use of Town property.for the Marine
Science Center’s Wildlife Festival; seconded by Councilmember Milano. The motion PASSED 5-
0, consensus.

C. Appropriation request for the 2026 Legislative session. — Mr. Disher stated the
originally proposed request for appropriations for design of the fire station building is being
withdrawn. In its place, a new request will be submitted to acquire property for future stormwater
improvements. He explained the withdrawal is due to awaiting the results of the upcoming site
feasibility study, evaluating funding availability, and the political considerations involved in
submitting legislative appropriation requests. Mr. Disher explained that the new request directly
relates torecent Council discussions regarding acquiring properties for stormwater improvements.
He briefly described the benefit of improving Town stormwater systems and explained how the
legislative request could be supplemented with funds from Volusia County’s Transform386
program. Councilmember White and Mr. Disher discussed potential estimates for future
stormwater property purchases and how this could impact funding assistance from the
Transform386 program. Mayor Paritsky opened public participation — Mr. Robert Bullard, 4802
South Peninsula Drive, questioned the zoning restrictions that could impact the use of the proposed
lots for future purchase. Mr. Disher explained a rezoning would not be required; however, a minor
special exception would have to be granted. Mayor Paritsky closed public participation.

Council consensus to submit the modified appropriation requests as proposed by staff for the 2026
Legislative session.

D. Request for direction to purchase vacant property at 58 South Turn Circle for
future stormwater improvements. — Councilmember White disclosed his knowledge of the
potential purchase of 58 South Turn Circle; he stated he would not be financially compensated if
the purchase were made, therefore Attorney Smith verified that he would not have to recuse
himself from the vote. Councilmember White’s disclosure statement is attached herein. Mr. Disher

Town Council October 16, 2025
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 6



133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178

explained that staff has been made aware of the potential to purchase a vacant lot at 58 South Turn
Circle for stormwater improvements. He explained how the lot is ideally situated to improve the
Town’s stormwater system. Councilmember White expressed his concerns about the Town’s long-
term finances and provided ideas on how the Town could move forward with immediate
stormwater improvements instead of purchasing additional property. Vice-Mayor Smith and
Councilmember Milano expressed concerns about not purchasing the available lot and someone
potentially developing a new home on it instead. A discussion followed regarding the process,
timeline, cost of developing Town-owned lots, and potential funding opportunities for future
projects. The Councilmembers spoke in favor of acquiring both vacant lots (54 South Turn Circle
and 58 South Turn Circle) with the understanding that a plan toimplement improvements would
be presented as soon as possible. Mayor Paritsky opened public participation — Mr. Robert Bullard,
4802 South Peninsula Drive, questioned if drainage easements are in place on the vacant lots and
suggested implementing drainage boundaries in the areas notorious for flooding. Mr. Mark
Oebbecke, 4758 South Peninsula Drive, voiced his support for purchasing both available lots and
suggested allocating funds from the South Peninsula Drive Sidewalk Project for developing
stormwater improvements. Vice-Mayor Smith and Mr. Disher explained how the funds for the
project are being allocated. Mayor Paritsky closed public participation. Councilmember White
provided rough estimates on the price to develop retention ponds, urged everyone to seriously
consider usage of the Land Acquisition Fund, and asked when the stormwater utility fee will be
implemented. Mr. Disher informed everyone that the Town recently received a code enforcement
lien settlement check in the amount of $120,000, which could be used towards stormwater
improvements if reappropriated in the future.

Councilmember White.made a motion approving staff to proceed with a Letter of Intent for 58
South Turn Circle and to bring back a final purchase proposal for Town Council approval;
seconded by Councilmember Milano. The motion PASSED, 5-0 with the following vote:
Councilmember White — yes; Councilmember Milano — yes; Mayor Paritsky — yes; Councilmember
Villanella — yes; Vice-Mayor Smith — yes.

14. (FROM THE TOWN COUNCIL:

A. Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5 — Vice-Mayor Smith informed everyone of a meeting
he recently attended where discussions centered around the proposed elimination of property taxes
and issues with stormwater and flooding due to development.

B. Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4 — Councilmember Villanella commented on
the process of evaluating items presented to the Town Council.

C. Councilmember White, Seat #3 — Councilmember White thanked Mr. Disher, Ms.
McColl, and Ms. Hall for recently meeting with him regarding the budget process for fiscal year
26/27. He mentioned key points discussed at the meeting, including a review of various
comparisons from the last five years; whether the Town should budget for reserve funds; factors
that cause the reserves to increase; monitoring departmental budgets on a “use it or lose it” basis;
performance and merit reviews; staffing considerations; using a cost-benefit analysis method, and
more.

Town Council October 16, 2025
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 6



179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224

D. Councilmember Milano, Seat #2 — Councilmember Milano updated everyone on
statistics from the First Step Shelter. He noted the First Step Shelters Annual Gala will be held on
February 7, 2026, and explained a new method the organization is using that allows them to place
more individuals in housing.

E. Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1 — Mayor Paritsky announced that she spoke at the Port
Orange-South Daytona Chamber of Commerce’s Government Day event on September 24, 2025
and attended the Volusia Delegation luncheon where discussions centered on appropriations in the
next legislative session, impacts of Senate Bill (SB) 180, and property tax elimination. She
explained that the Florida League of Cities’ Utilities, Natural Resources, and Public Works
Committee has been narrowing down priority issues to present to the legislature, and they are
focusing on stormwater management, water quality, and more. Mayor Paritsky met recently with
Representative Tramont where they discussed SB' 180, property taxes, and anticipated
appropriation requests. She described efforts made by the Stormwater Mitigation and Flooding
Subcommittee of the Volusia Elected Officials Roundtable and stated anyone can subscribe to
County’s stormwater newsletter at www.volusia.org/newsletter to receive information
highlighting ongoing efforts, programs, and projects addressing flooding. Mayor Paritsky stated
she recently met with Dr. Balgobin, Superintendent of Volusia County Schools, and more where
they discussed the current and future plans for students and how mayors can help. Mayor Paritsky
commended the Citizen’s for Ponce Inlet (C4PI) newsletter editors for their exceptional work
producing a newsletter at the caliber they do. She also thanked the President, Board of Directors,
and volunteers of that organization.

15.  FROM THE TOWN MANAGER — Mr. Disher stated Votran is considering eliminating
its route in Ponce Inlet and replacing it with on-demand services; Volusia County will be holding
a series of public meetings to gather feedback; more information can be found at www.votran.org.
He explained the athletic court reservation system is being updated, and the Planning and
Development Department has been working hard on continuing to make more permit applications
available online.

16. FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY - Attorney Smith provided an update on the Town
Council’s request for updates to the Town’s sound amplification ordinance. He provided a history
on the process and referred to an ongoing case in St. Petersburg, Florida regarding similar
concerns. He compared the difference in sound amplification using electronic or acoustic outlets
and noted the Town’s ordinance will be focusing on outdoor entertainment instead of the
amplification of sound.

17. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (on items 14 — 16 only) — Mayor Paritsky opened public
participation — Mr. Robert Bullard, 4802 South Peninsula Drive, had questions regarding a Votran
study completed a few years ago and commented on the opportunities for Votran to operate as an
enterprise. Public participation was closed. Vice-Mayor Smith stated it could be worthwhile to poll
the local restaurants on their employees’ average usage of Votran services.

18. ADJOURNMENT - Mayor Paritsky adjourned the meeting at 3:47 p.m.

Respectfully submitted by:

Town Council October 16, 2025
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 6


http://www.volusia.org/newsletter
http://www.votran.org/

225

226
227
228
229

Draft

Kim Cherbano, CMC, Town Clerk

Prepared by: Stephanie Gjessing, Deputy Town Clerk
Attachment(s): Councilmember White’s Correspondence Disclosure Statement

Town Council
Regular Meeting Minutes

O

October 16, 2025
Page 6 of 6



Agenda ltem 13 D

From: janemanatee@aol.com (janemanatee@aol.com)

To:

Janemanatee@aol.com

Date: Tuesday, October 14, 2025 at 03:08 PM EDT

| would like to disclose my knowledge of the potential purchase of lot 58 South Turn
Circle. | first learned about the potential purchase of lot 54 South Turn Circle when
Cindy Ritchie, a local resident and realtor, called me requesting information that she
had received from Town Manager Mike Disher concerning lot 58 South Turn Circle.
Cindy is representing the seller of 54 South Turn Circle and wanted to reach out to the
owner of lot 58. Mike had shared with Cindy that we (Jane and I) were friends with the
owner, and the lot was not on the market, but she wanted to see if she could contact
the owner about selling lot 58. Cindy stated she had tried reaching Renee Morse, but
she could not get a call back. | was not going to give Cindy Renee’s personal
information. | contacted Mike and asked what was that all about and he shared with me
that lot 58 was the main lot that the Town would like to acquire but Cindy could not get a
call back. Renee Morse has been a close personal friend of Jane and mine for many
years. | told Mike if he wanted, | could give Renee a call and see if she had any interest
in selling. Mike said that would be GREAT! Jane reached out to Renee around two
months ago and she stated she would talk with her son Justin, but she did not think she
wanted to sell. Fast forward to September 21, Renee reached out to Jane and stated
she might be selling lot 58. Then Renee made contact again on September 28th with
Jane asked if the Town was still interested and Jane stated she would need to talk with
Town Manager Mike Disher. Jane talked with Mike after talking with Renee asking what
he would like to do and he said he would like to offer 350k as that is what the Town has
a contract for on lot 54. Jane stated to Ponce Inlet Town Manager Mike Disher that she
would communicate back to Renee and clearly stated there will be NO COMMISSION!
NO COMMISSION ON EITHER SIDE BASED ON THE REALTOR COMMISSION
POLICY. Renee flat out said no even with Jane stating their will be no commission she
still said no (Jane is trying to help the Town). Jane notified Mike with the news and also
told Mike to give it sometime and she could change her mind. On October 8th Renee
contacted Jane and stated she would except the 350k with no Commission! On October
9th Jane emailed Mike and copied Renee with the details price, closing date request
and NO COMMISSIONS STATED CLEARLY also all the contact information for Renee
Morse and her team because all the paperwork and closing documents would be
handled by the Town of Ponce Inlet ( | have a copy of the email if needed between
Renee, Mike and Jane ) With all this being said Drew do | need to recuse myself from
voting on this item?


mailto:janemanatee@aol.com
mailto:janemanatee@aol.com
mailto:janemanatee@aol.com

Re: 58 South Turn Circle

From: Renee Morse (renee.morse@reagan.com)
To:  mdisher@ponce-intet.org
Cc: janemanatee@aol.com; mmosher@circlem.org

Date: Thursday, October 8, 2025 at 04:29 PM EDT

Thanks all! Glad to help!
Sent from my iPad

On Oct 9, 2025, at 4:15 PM, Mike Disher <mdisher@ponce-inlet.org> wrofe:

Jane, Mrs. Morse, and Ms. Mosher,

Thank you all very much! Having this in writing will allow us to move forward more quickly. | will take this
to the Town Council at next Thursday’s meeting. if they give the go-ahead, which I'm very, very sure
they will, we can have the Letter of Intent to you the next day. Electronic signatures are perfectly
acceptable. The goal will then be to take the contract to the Town Council for approval at the November
Council meeting, with closing before the end of the calendar year.

Thanks again for working me and the Town.

Sincerely,

Michael E. Disher, AiICP

Town Manager

TOWNOF PONCE INLET
4300 South Atlantic Avenue
Ponce Inlet, FL. 32127

mdisher@ponce-inlet.org

Off » 386-213-4240
Celi « 386-241-3996
Fx = 386-236-2190


mailto:mdisher@ponce-inlet.org
mailto:mdisher@ponce-inlet.org
mailto:mmosher@circlem.org
mailto:janemanatee@aol.com
mailto:mdisher@ponce-inlet.org
mailto:renee.morse@reagan.com

From: janemanatee@aol.com <janemanatee@aol.com>

Sent: Thursday, October 9, 2025 11:04 AM

To: Mike Disher <mdisher@ponce-inlet.org>

Cc: Renee Morse <renee.morse@reagan.com>; mmosher@circlem.org; janemanatee
<janemanatee@aol.com>

Subject: 58 South Turn Circle

[EXTERNAL: This email was sent from outside of ponce-inlet.org, confirm this is a trusted sender before opening any
links or attachments]

Good moming Michael, great talking to you. Renee Morse called me yesterday after you and | talked. She said Yes
to selling her vacant lot to Ponce Inlet. She agreed to $350,000 purchase price, cash closing, no commissions, no
inspections and around 2 months or sooner closing. | told her the Town will do a LOI and this would go before the
Town Council for approval and it is done. Renee wants it very simple and hopefully it will be. lol. Please see the
property owner information for 58 South Turn Circle.

BRM Property Holding, LLC
1950 Laurel Manor Dr. Ste 130
The Villages, FI 32162

Megan Mosher , VP (Megan has authority to sign on behalf of the LLC)

mmosher@circlem.org

(352) 216-1783 cell

I have copied Renee Morse and Megan Mosher on this email. Should you need any additional information or if | can
be of any assistance, please feel free to contact me.

Kindest Regards,

Jane White
386-562-0089 celi

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring, and fair in delivering community excellence while ensuring
Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar.


mailto:mmosher@circlem.org
https://ponce-inlet.org
mailto:janemanatee@aol.com
mailto:mmosher@circlem.org
mailto:renee.morse@reagan.com
mailto:mdisher@ponce-inlet.org
mailto:janemanatee@aol.com
mailto:janemanatee@aol.com

NOTE: Please do not send any personal e-mail o this address. Florida has very broad public records laws. Most
written communication to or from Town of Ponce Inlet officials and employees regarding public business are public
records available to the public and media upon request. Your e-mail communications may be subjfect fo public
disclosure. Under Florida law, e-mail addresses are public records. If you do not want your e-mail address refeased in
response to a public records request, do not send electronic mail to this entity. Instead, contact this office by phone or

in writing.



Meeting Date: 11/20/2025

Agenda Item: 9-A

Report to Town Council

Topic: Request for support to rename Lighthouse Point Park to James
Milton Lighthouse Point Park.

Summary: Ms. Jennifer Hunt Longmire requested the Town’s support
to rename Lighthouse Point Park in honor of her late father,
James Milton Hunt, at the October 16, 2025 Town Council
meeting. By consensus, the Town Council decided to
discuss drafting a letter of support. Staff has prepared a
letter and is seeking the Council’s input and direction.

Suggested motion: As determined by Council.

Requested by: Ms. Alex, Cultural Services Manager

Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager




Item 9-A

MEMORANDUM

TOWN OF PONCE INLET, CULTURAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT
The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community
excellence while ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar
To: Michael E. Disher, AicP, Town Manager
From: Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager

Date: November 6, 2025

Subject:  Letter of Support to Rename Lighthouse Point Park to James Milton Hunt Lighthouse
Point Park

MEETING DATE: November 20, 2025

At the October 16, 2025 Town Council meeting, Ms. Jennifer Hunt Longmire requested the
Town’s support to rename Lighthouse Point Park in honor of her late father, James Milton Hunt,
who was instrumental in preserving the land for the park in 1983 (Attachment 1). While located
in Ponce Inlet, Lighthouse Point Park is managed by Volusia County on state lands leased by the
County from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP). Changing the name
of the park is therefore a decision to be made by the County Council and FDEP.

By consensus, the Town Council decided to discuss drafting a letter of support at the next
regularly scheduled Town Council meeting. Staff has prepared a draft support letter for the
Council’s consideration that reflects the Town’s appreciation for Mr. Hunt’s efforts to protect
Ponce Inlet’s coastal lands (Attachment 2).

Staff is seeking the Council’s input and direction on the draft letter. If acceptable, the Town will
finalize the letter of support and provide it to the Volusia County Council.

Attachments:
1. Request from Jennifer Hunt Longmire
2. Draft Letter of Support to rename Lighthouse Point Park to James Milton Hunt
Lighthouse Point Park



Attachment 1

Renaming Lighthouse Point
Park to The James Milton Hunt
Lighthouse Point Park

Produced by Jennifer Hunt Longmire



A brief background of the history of Lighthouse Point Park

My Dad. James Milton Hunt, up on South Atlantic Avenue [ Wilbur-by-the
Sea. He used to ride his bike down to the inlet to fish and play in the mangroves. it
was his favorite piece of land on Earth. Back in early 1981, when he was working
in Miami, he learned of the purchase of land by Transol at the end of the inlet at
Ponce Inlet. He quickly went to Ponce Inlet and found out it was true. They had
bought all the land and were going to put 500 condos and several mini malls on
the property. He decided at that moment that the land should be saved as a park
for all people and future generations to enjoy. The journey to start the "Don't
Condo Our Lighthouse" campaign began. He moved to Ponce Inlet and started the
project to save his favorite piece of property. For several years he went to all the
meetings in Ponce Inlet and Volusia County regarding the property. He went to
Washington to meet with Senator Chiles about the land. He also traveled to
Tallahassee and worked with Governor Graham and his "Save our Coasts" program
to acquire endangered valuable coastal lands set for development. He worked
tirelessly for years to save the land. He put his heart and soul into saving the land
and preserving Ponce Inlet as a town and not a city. Finally, at a meeting by the
Cabinet of Florida on May 18, 1983, after much debate and an eloquent speech by
Frank Bruno, it all came down to Governor Graham calling a motion and then
cabinet member Smith moved that it be approved and so it was. The closing of
the title occurred on June 24, 1983 and the park was opened on November 14,
1986.



Dear Vice Chair of the County Council, Matt Reinhart,

My name is Jennifer Hunt Longmire and | live in Daytona Beach. | am writing today to request your

support in the consideration of changing the name of Lighthouse Point Park in Ponce Inlet to The James
Hunt Lighthouse Point Park. My fath - - - ' > 1

for the park back in 1983. There is a plaque on the pavilion building in his honor. But | believe that all he

did for Ponce Inlet and having created the park, that it should be named after him. | wiii give you a short

synopsis of why this is so important.

My Dad, James Milton Hunt, grew up on South Atlantic Avenue in Wilbur-by-the Sea. He used to ride his bike down
to the inlet to fish and play in the mangroves. It was his favorite piece of land on Earth. Back in early 1981, when he
was working in Miami, he learned of the purchase of land by Transol at the end of the inlet at Ponce Inlet. He
quickly went to Ponce Inlet and found out it was true. They had bought all the land and were going to put 500
condos and several mini malls on the property. He decided at that moment that the land should be saved as a park
for all people and future generations to enjoy. The journey to start the "Don't Condo Our Lighthouse" campaign
began. He moved to Ponce Inlet and started the project to save his favorite piece of property. For several years he
went to all the meetings in Ponce Inlet and Volusia County regérding the property. He went to Washington to meet
with Senator Chiles about the land. He also traveled to Tallahassee and worked with Governor Graham and his
"Save our Coasts" program to acquire endangered valuable coastal lands set for development. He worked tirelessly
for years to save the land. He put his heart and soul into saving the land and preserving Ponce Inlet as a town and
not a city. Finally, at a2 meeting by the Cabinet of Florida on May 18, 1983, after much debate and an eloquent
speech by Frank Bruno, it all came down to Governor Graham calling a motion and then cabinet member Smith
moved that it be approved and so it was. The closing of the title occurred on fune 24, 1983 and the park was
opened on November 14, 1986.

{ am seeking advice on what the process is for the County’s consideration of the name change. | have
already spoken to Mayor Paritsky about it and my intention is to go to the Town of Ponce Inlet’s Council
seeking their support. Any advice would be very appreciated.

The park is a special place for so many people from near and far and my Dad was so proud of it. He
would go 3 to 4 times a week to walk it. He loved to see the people fishing and enjoying the beach and
walkways, just as he had always imagined it, so many years ago. Unfortunately, about a year ago my Dad
unexpectantly passed away, so this an important endeavor for me.

I hope you will help make this dream a reality of renaming Lighthouse Point Park to The James Milton
Hunt Lighthouse Point Park to honor my Dad for everything he did to create the park and protect Ponce
Iniet.

Sincerely,

Jennifer Hunt Longmire

684 Margaritaville Ave
Daytona Beach, FiL 32124
617-816-4041
jhlongmire@msn.com



Town of Ponce Inlet

23} seuth Atlantie Avenue
Pomree Indet Florida 32127
Phone 138632362130

RGN

i

e A - - y T bl L e ety =t . b I o o
SLSOrVALID Fora: inle By e [V Eag - DU L ¥ B 3 655 INPOram ©am

ulted 1 ine creatoa of Lighthouse Point Park in 1983 His work in 3
af i1 g,h ouse Point Park demonsirates his commitment 1o preserving the beauty
and nataral resources of Ponee Infet This park is a lasting legacy of his efforts that
will be enjoved by the public for generations to come. A debt of gratitude is owed

to Mr. Hunt for all of his contributions to our community.

Sincergly,

Lo B Vossty

i

{;’

Lo A Pantsky
sayor, Town of Paage nbet

Towmn of Pence injsy

4300 South Atlgatn Avs
Bonee infet, Floosas 32527
385-310-4320
paritsky @ ponce sl arg

L e e B R 1L B I



i

oy o

_ iidirg
Achievement

il i ot

e

.

gy

Figure A James Hunt Sierra Club Award For Outstanding Achievement




7

X%




DON'T CONDo

OUR

LIGHTHOUSE/

Proposed Condominiumg g Shopping Cente,

Ol e &

\
.u-:’ N
[

. opmant Co. will 800n propose
o ’Zsm above) surrounding the Light

FTON:

t ri Authority:
::?3 N Hsgiifax Avenue

4201 g e servation Groug
Daytona Beach. Fila 320 Daytong Beach, Fia 32019

8 condom

Inly
housge s 2 86d

shopping center
"ﬁlﬂlbemwomngm-hﬂ!

JOIN: Ponce DeLeon

§ 1
! Il.’ ! /1 re

\




A PETITION

TO: PONCE DELEON INLET AND PORT AUTHORITY
PONCE INLET TOWN COUNCIL
PONCE INLET PLANNING COMMISSION
VOLUSIA COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT
VOLUSIA COUNTY COUNCIL
FLORIDA STATE DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

Please use your best efforts to immediately act to purchase for preservation the
land located from the lighthouse to the ocean to the river (including Hutchinson
Island) for preservation. (All the land from Batelle Marine Lab (paint testing station)
south to the inlet). |

4
J ADDRESS WILL HELP PHONE
rl;. ‘/" ‘J ,.f‘ 1 , Y \"/_!' ( & ;;‘:»’ , , ,F J," ¢
F v o 53 oy s 7 7} gy " N it
W O fose vl Nyg o gagr ~ W
U207 g

A
_’Lc Z { ’:;;;1-(, LA A Lt 4 0 Y [ ¥as
S M A5 USe Adbvele oy A54-64YY
L“i'f?'i;' e FEGMeadiashies 2.5 Fh Tes Chcey g Jea Gl -RFER Y
\ ; £ - A i LT3~ 256
My £oi g AIE W e L,
| 2 20 Suprs B 7L 95Y
é;:n L d Ltns. Lo /.(H ,rcfut »if- 183

Backside 6,000--Signatures




A Psrmon

SUBJEGT AHEA

CoMELR VAT 6N

To PROVIHB GOOD GOVEWENT ARD &Vbﬁ) ?AXATIOR HI‘!'RO“’I’ RB?EESEKTATION

A

VOTER'S' smmmz ; o ik
(P‘LEASE SIGN AS IT APPEARS ON VOTING' ROLL)
Pd. Pol. Adv., paid for by the Poncx DE LEON INLET Pnssma'rms GROUP
JAMES M. HUNT,: CHAIRMAN

4671 South &tlancic Avenwe, Ponce Inlet 321“;19"
) Telephoae 90&'»161-795& ; i




“Without Jenny and Tara’s Permission, There Would Be No Park”

Lighthouse Developers, Inc. TO State of Florida, Friday June 24, 1983

From Left Jim Hall, Port Authority, Ney Landrum-State of Florida,
Jennifer Alane Hunt Longmire, activist, Victor Fransen developer/owner,
Tara Louise Hunt Wear, activist, James Milton Hunt, activist
John Ellis, Pioneer Realty, Michael Dawes developer/partner










School Board To Tackle Atiendance Zone Shifis

From Our wes? Veluala Suresu

DELAKT — —— The Scheol Board has a long day in store
Tuesday, starting with a regular bustness

up with & 7 p.an. publie hearing

znnesfmjmﬁm‘mgmgm’ Grea:erDayzBea:hAm

haif chont Kemsmtheagen-
three high s gmwiyak,mammg
| 3

da' for the morning mﬁngm&e&dmd
“uiliiing, 230 . Stege 5t
Saperintes

Howard eld, who retired Thursday after 3¢ years in the
schoof system.

The transfer of DeLand High Principal James Clements
10 George Marks Elementary Schoof alse is recommenided,
with Mainland High Principal Jack Surrebe io be trams-
20 DeLand 25 Claments’ raplacement. George Marks
tary Prineipal Robart Smith bas retived.

id he sxpeets fo recommend replacen
Surratie and Hall al iba Scbaol Baard's July 12 meali
Also on the agenda for Tuesday’s meeting is distributicn

pis for

School Board Attorney Richard Graham advised the
board it might be better to backtrack and follow the
Admimstraﬁvel’mcednraAeﬁnMngmaﬂmdanw ;Mftlwm
rmesraﬁxefﬁsmtanskahﬁg,we!ega.bam it

jmﬂrkighmxefbens'met in Port {range and the closing
Sea Jmmﬂ?ghanﬂ;iamianﬂSevthndeCﬂn-

Ihebmr&aﬁmedmwatteuﬂmcemama but
Iater decided 1o go through the process z;g,mx,;.m:!u:l;s:gpﬁ1
mse of & Maxgemdebgagrwp

Wwﬂmmm
oy e Staie's
mmﬁﬁlatlhehoa:dbzdn‘i

based
ﬁrepaﬁmrbyi}r Eve Booth,
‘The school 3 nn sasm grant from the

system received

state Department of Ed: tzf
such 2 program. The schoot bnsed management approa:
places greatermanagment Tesponsthility at l!ms:hoo{ and
deparimental levels, within general goals and polieies sst
by the School Board. A full pre.,en’mncn [} "ecammu‘d_,
tices for adopiing that n Volusiy
sthaols will be made a3 the hoa

Fiiasday, the Schanl Roarsd
sion of its doniract with CAf Ina -Bussell & Axon Lne ‘r‘

managemenz.&evahpeﬂm'

&erveaswnstmmmmmgaafmmnﬁiﬁmbﬁl&g
3

the APA.
School Bnarﬂ Altoraey Richard Grabam disagreed bt
said samme state appellate cmmm bedmsiuns bhave foand school

&n extension “if possib 2 )
pariod ends Sunday. but several zrojects Included in the
building completed.

Temain ta ke
After complating Its regular agends, the board will re-
cess ifs meeting untid 7 p.m., when the hpard will meet In
‘he auditorium of Mainlaad ng,": School.
A pzhlic bearing on oroposed new aftendance zones for
..i;e Grea?.e? Da\iazm Beach Arex will be comducted, with

adaction

tulemaking. He adyised
the board it might be better to backtzack and follow (he
APA procedures rather then to visk losing a Jong, expensive
{egal battls.

In addition to  publishing 2 formal non"c of its inent 1o
adopt the seks i b
TOMIC _’EBJEE S
Seheol "tm-d ki

cf zew znnes “The chlrgcs provide for the 0 up_:xmg of 2 new

EE@aun%{j 10 Rescued After
Indian River Accident

Br MIGE PARKERSON e wasn't catehing much of anything,™
Hews.Journal Stalt Virter Robertsom said.
A clamming tzip in the Indian River  “Aboul 615, themndwhppedaps.ms
pearly proved faial for a Holly Hill eop-  waves coming out of nowhere.
pie aad their guest from Qriando, who Weﬁgnmdwe‘&bmeraztm# i
were tossed it the Intracoastal Water- ;* Roberison related. “We should e
way wheu their 14 foot fiberglass boat havederided alittle eerlier," he adled,
msmmmmwmams_n The fad 1 only
pi;he%nn nsyu]i]gtmnfma
oo water yahm which halged the |
.- party Tight | mﬂ!iwaxudm&ﬂ’
. themmaﬁs&camp . .

Rokrmwsnﬁmmm'm
s'iem&mﬂtytheﬁumaamﬂma . Fortana

. eved by & 15 hp. ;
" secend of two ex]
With Reberison, & ineulstack!mhr
&5 mhiswg.e . Joan, and John A Alley, @

" retired U Amym!melanﬁmnii

- were worried the party might get .
Sunday Pance -Inlet Mayor mayton -
who was.on lum& 10 overses the ceiebrauon
ture.

envivmmentaﬁsfsandreiusalhy?oncehlettaisme_‘
needed permits stymied the development plan:
Duteh firm, v

andspa:emakeitimpnsnb}emamwermlnqﬂﬁes, but we’lm-aekﬂuwn

tkaseweﬂinkaflnthddms}wrkﬁmm an
Assignment,” The News-Journal, P.0, Box 431, Daytona Beach, 32015, -
Your name, address and phone number mupst be Incloded, aItlmugiz net
necessan'lg fnrpumicnhwifgausnmﬁule. e T

Th eAssxgnment : coof
: hmmmmwwnuammAw : i
mj’mw?nmmhykmthﬂe nﬂsenmm&ruisln

The Report Wy
No, meysmm‘tmté&xmm Wellace 7. Fish, fifth distriet
was M& with ﬁ‘m mmm
2 over
ﬂxeviaystatemads aumbered.
Q’fgaﬁ&emmhmduﬁymwmmfmmwh
cles,’ :
For example, a S.R. 404 in the New Beach area coincided with 2
R.ﬂnmmehdaﬁm.wmgm How\mhtﬁermmnmng,
“aid this problém and simflar probiems have been solved.
mgzdbﬁnmagzgmmamhemmm,m m iy,
o ‘program {
‘u'sﬁemA’”ehmmF;&' tes al letter prefixes and sulfixes with the sxeep” m‘;nm,z mcﬁe Bmﬁ
said. 2 anything in
~t Dunlawton Avenile means oo other state road in Florida fs this case,” said Gilpatrick, Wh“ﬂ'
h said, ) mils {6 being frusirated about the
¥ w1 uwm_“%d ‘PW
: il o, m‘_ar w iop o n - hasess s the Cidte Do
ment . o Tnding o s G b (Bes GODE e pega sy
ting parents iz Doytonz Beach wiiles 46 5ay ihe - ;
meme,wmmmmdkyphmbmmm
Yeh they later paid ﬂ:enmms,mh
mder.fb:ummﬁ'edupandﬁdm
which was refased. Aitempts by ihe
\:Hhenrig'mﬂ lsyyhm,naﬁ

mmmmzwmmmu,mammmpmmmn,
& m:zaamkap.masm Nmbnmﬂdmmnﬂ}

'lm (hepmmﬁs
umﬁs&smﬁmtma . tothema‘mzy

) ﬁwrmﬁzr state law in seme
‘%Wmtb&iﬂmu&
mmu

‘s asailable through the.
mmﬂiﬁﬁmu{ﬁe




ot

, % - . P ...,.u..iw ZML..,:W\.” [ g un»» 5
R G A AN

96/2:180-98¢
o hesed Apuin Jolipy

ST woojusk-smauy
WL DSMIUABUNWILIOIAW

/SMaN anox
S puas




t Lighthouse Pom

BY wﬁim.mm « _,,., * ~"and make it their “eternal B years 55. mm,mezw:mw&m gow
STAFF WRITER “project” to adopt and oversee. “Don’t Condo My Lighthouse,”

years mmo, it was a wilderness
area. ' James feels a very close

PONCE INLET - chm,EEm % “Itold them that one of their which documents the five-year Kinship to that property. ile hes ¢
happened to James mﬁﬁn the »w.ﬂmn “classmates helped save this land fight in poini-by-point detail.’, uc:m history there. And he wants
time he looked out on the ocean * and that they should nurture it, - “The first response I got was i ,,uoou_w to visit, to have the same

5@ most moman wa.. F ' - have a connection to it,” he said. as a waste of time,” he recalled:..  good times he’ &n We wg?ogo
v vo i, of the park that’s owned by the “That it was Em.E‘Em.mww wﬁ 1
! n»:. Sdach ; “gtate and maintained by Volusia  wasn't going tolose.” wi Hunt looks at wma_&m of
That gammca with the. «+County. *One of the things I'd Joe Nelin, who' oversees’ I'ages walking along the jetty,

“sunbathing or barbecuing, he

. like to do is improve the : - Volusia County’s coastal .:immo
shoreline’s natural beauty — i realizes that all of the work he

ospecially at what today is " . ° *.entryway, bring up the mgawam welcomes the support of Hunt's'

Lighthouse Point Park =  * ‘ - Raise some money” - Class of 1961 to help mairitain the . ~and others did was worthwhile.
g&nm just as stron all'of * " . Back in'1981, Hunt was s_& park in the future, whether that “It’s fabulous, fabulous,” he
g  classmate who fought to keep leads to upgrading fading signs:  “said, looking out at the boats anc

.mﬁa.anm out on the water. *1
ongider this one of nuw seven
c:%& of the world.

ronically, Hunt is a former

W a&ﬁ& real estate developet
: v lives ih Bt Algustine,
) mumanﬁw two years in
agler Beach. His home is an R'
"Besides my two (adult)
hmmzmwanm. this is the major
‘accomplishment in my life,” Hw
‘said of Lighthouse Point Park,
which he still visits occasionally
But I know it’s here and that
cEw ﬁm enjoying it méé day.

,,,wouaagm».mgcmzm_:m% o:mugow_mﬁmwm?m éoo%:
piece of land” pristine.’ i shack at the entrance. =~
“Otherwise, it would have been Z&E mma Hunt has nmmu 33 :
condos, wwmcESE: Hunt - o tothe park and
i w.maw_w_mn Five hundred 5:.._ it encompass
° townhouses.” W wada,
EcSeraE pfﬁ.ww Hunt said he was outraged mm&& {ng place
w@»mswm .m_ubmm .gz.w.m that Ponce Inlet officials planned wiof high
¥ ~ »&Mm w .m e oot allowing a massive ;- m,, hwiol kids, 2
. mmwu. the point was - .1 Jominium project that would 'd,
a ?49. ite %cu_ﬁ A gm@ﬁb have altered the point’s unspoiled
the late '50s, it became a popular  oparactor With a 6 ,000-signature
weekend retreat for m&: and his petition in'hand, he and other
wcgmmmumﬁw School: - ‘supporterg E%Szww& both state.
pes i i, and county officials to buy the
.drcwwﬂﬁun umaBa. Sm & Emn _ property for $2.7 millionand
recent 50th anniversary recently .~ p5iq'a public park that opened.

i

] _Ems,

: ray.weiss@neu
moved him J. m-%mw w—n %%w&mﬁmm » 95 years agdthis month, « * youthy? g7 A
i ’ 3 =M§Eo.mwm Point Park | Hunt, wh describes E_sm% Nolin said.

“Thigty



» Aq egesy

RN AT e A

V. teneatsseud siy Joj wiy Suuouoy snbejd
efjeEh Bl 12 Ny satef wiof WSy ‘ounig yuesy
A pue Wi "SIARQ uoser iey) Auno?) eisnjop

R

81E159 feal © g6 [udy Uy
JIRL 22U SUD[BIL 930M 819
-dojeasp opuos Lsmyy ‘eae
s uo poediy me oew of
19A pBY] SAUIOY XOq-IDPRI,
‘Bsp-idny  ydnog  Iepiog
S)E SB UBIDO 9L UM [jors

Yoeeg  BUOMAR(]  ‘yoeey
puoun(y — SN0
BunoquBu sy pue peay
euoiiecy spremor ssediod

TV LM 295

— 19U $0UCJ pUR SSIOYS

oyl Buiumy wueSag swdo
-[2A3p ‘50.61-pIu 2 Aq pue
‘auipseod eplol] oy Suope
S9N pue SUMO}  OpISEIs
leqpo ul unSoq Apeare pey
Surpimg-wnunuopuo)
“a8ueyd
UO0S POM SUIPSEOD A JO
£1usias A g "Jo pIesyin
fgeior  sem  Ioop  Ixeu
dn Swddod yuouow ssu
B B JO BIPI O PUR ‘UBAIO
oy} JO SMIIA pRlMISOuR
Pey VIy Suop peydlens

1B} SISSIUTSTIY PUB SSUIOL
IS JUPIP  SWNIUEUIORUO0D -

‘0L61 noge mupn ueANQ
onuepy o woll  sdays
1snf sem swoy S "pues

pue yms jo punoidderdd og |

-JApt tie — prefjorq UMO Sq
Aferon] sem yoeaq sy ‘eas
-at-Aq-mgupm ur dn Sumoid
SeM JUNH uwoNmN  soure(
uwaygm ‘sgg, &tp ur dpeg

SMIN UMOJBIMOL, S0
uopeym Aped Ag

VY ‘SaMIaE o95

DA DG PO, Tat] BUp|Se Joquuaa 1,
| PITRA JOT] TUT UKD JO K18 SBY)
i1 G} II0qE SeAl] 1181S ARy,
ied § 1515E UR $S0108 pajjol 4og)
00 SOIAGS S 50 SafRUY Buy, sunung
xl paraaco jo med e §1 ‘projsarag
W prodoRg SUMULLNS "SIl UL OS[Y
"PRs aus  ‘Burpesig s
s A5t Uiy | o8 BT 1o oy Sut
] 1600 ALU T SJA0 UO9RI08 0L pIBaY T,
e S SINPAOS JO PEAtje S B og 0
iy Buiids Pres ueunoys s
“paes apmi3
IO RS0 PUR (L0 Ul 15au 03 unBaq
A5 DAY MAY R 111G DAL 0] YLIOU STRISI
‘Supds Uy sapispeol Suope
3 punose spog wr ped fep

A SULBNRUD DNSTINOBIRYD HAY)

Tear) ueo nok judy pue 1qoing usemieg,
: IpINg [PALL], 009
BP0 PIM 241 0] BIIpiosor ‘epuUop] 0] s1m
-ISIA SS)UIIM TIOLLITUOD 978 SUIGOY URdLMIY
Jeane

Jey} up AU 0§ 998 0 [PHISHiI $)],, ‘PIES UBUI.

-194S "SI, Buntusuniion uos aany ajdoa,
- o1aY) seriIaq ATjOY 91 U0 Jseg)
01 BSNOYLMOd po s pue [of A1 ‘sdoys
Teau Supees usaq aAsy ‘sIqMU afine] Afe
-nsnum ut ‘spuq Asoyeri ot pres ‘quapiserd
-00 UDQNPIY BISOOA 15ap, U Tuapisaid ao1a
JIPOOA 3BT JO SPUSLE] ‘UBULIANS S1owy
$00M JUDIIL LI} PUETAC] UMO])
-umop 0) Supjoo usaq vARY suIgo Jo sdnoid
o8] ‘[eansa) 19a1S WIBWL © 0) SIA[OAST I

SHIRN UMOIRILOH 104
qaoM B3 Ag

URULIBYS DL Jaypiem paiq piae pue saydesSojoyd
SJHpYIM [230] Jo JPa3} ) spsIA Sunung pajued sjew y
UEIIBYS SO 0 ASIMN0D 030 | o

Fr——




Hometown News

5

Friday, March 1, 2013

 Yellow Dental Gold
+ Gold Charms

« Platinum Jewelry

* Gold Watch Bands
* Diamond Jewelry

+Plus mousands of
other items wanted
vk gold New, used or damaged OK

1886-2012.scemnnrmsssssencennn$ 31,00
& Buffalos ......ccsees.-...$1635/01.

186-2012......00000 0000000003 1630/ 0Z.
if. .$1620/o0z.
968 & U .........o0nenee.n.$1610/ 0L

— (/1)

V. $1605 & up
;. $803 & up

s $802 & UP

« Ali Gold Coin lewelry—

ﬁverﬁSTGﬂoo?__

Hunt
From page Al

brnker representing a Dutch-
sed development compe-
ol USA Inc. came

pristine in
conglomeratl
townhomes and & shopping
center, The proposal involved
land that Transol had bought,
a portion of which abutted
the Lighthouse reservation
fence, and the area where the
Marine Science Center is
located.

When word of the proposed
development reached James
Hunyt, he was ready for action.

He was appalled, as were

many others, the déstruction
of pristne inlet propery
wnuld aven he considered. He
immediately went to work,
initating a ground-floor effort
to stop the massive project.
But Transo! had the upper

T ed unit develon-
menton i vansol’s pro-
posed project would in
2ssence encompass the entire
iy of Daytona’s scenic, uadis-
rhed peninsula. Upon com-
edon, the development
woutkd allow investors a pri-
vare ip_ie{ haa en unto them-
bﬁl\tb vnm {itiie opposition,

With 1

-and ‘seeming support from

the Ponce Inlet Planning
Commission, plans for devel-
opment got underway. -

On Sept. 8, 1981, Gov. Bob
Graham anncunced a pro-
gram  called,  “Save Our
Coasts” to acquire coastal
land slated for development.

i :\l; K

8
] g"sm BEROME®  BAYTORA BEACH

Hatiatakne 201 DRIIANAE BN
Ao

"V sRA
4100285

AT ML

2555151

FREE FIMANCING 12 MONTHS
WwWWw. mcallsterﬂooﬂng.com

The Canal Street Historic District
of New Smyrna Beach )
& Marc Monteson Promotions present

The Downtown
Music Festival
in conjuncdon with
Art Stroli and Gallery Walk
SATURDAY
MARCH 2, 2013
9:00am - 11:00 pm
Bring a lawa chaiv for outdoor evepis

For schedules and venues go o
canaisireeinsd.com or pick-up a figer
=41 dnw:xmw& tmsmass-?s

most evests are FREE

#For 7 mcre Iﬁfarmaumz )

051005

 wishers-- and

The following day, Mr. Hunt
formed the Ponce de leon
Preservation .Group. Tts slo-
gan, “Don't Condo Our Light-
house,” struck a resounding
chord among thousands of
concerned citizens.

As the crescendo of opposi-
rion grew swonger, Mr. Hunt
deliverad more than 4,600
petidons to an October 1981
Port Authority meeting. The
count later grew io inore than
6,000 petitions. In the mean-
time, Mr. Hunt had applied to
the “Save Our Coasts” pro-
gram for state funds to help
Uuy U.lt ,;.ll.lcl PJ.UPCJ. l.y

Throughout the ensuing
weeks and months, the Plan-
ning Commission held fast to
approval of the PUD plan.
Undaunted, Mr. Hunt circu-
lated another petition, this
fime gning donr fo door to
every reglstered voter. ‘in
Ponce Inlet. The petition
“demanded” preservation of
the acreage being threatened,
and the citizenry overwhelm-
ingly supported it.

At a meeting of the Plan-
ning Commission on Feb. 24,
1982, it reversed its previous
vote, thus denying the PUD
plan. - Contributing to that
decision were flood maps that
had been made public, show-
ing neaﬂy 90 0 percent of tEe
ineligible for federal flood
insurance. Also, the Volusia
County Council, after hearing
Mr. Hunmt express his con-
cens, voted to support the
preservation of the indet avea.

Om April 14,1982, the Ponce
Inlet Town Council voted
against the PUD develop-
ment.

Afteryears ofhard work and
endless meetings with local,
county and state officials,
James Hunt's relentless quest
to save the inlet finally pre-
vailed. Lighthouse Point Park
was officially opened on Nov.
14, 1986.

Today the inlet wilderness
area is permanently sealed
from Corporate encroach—
meit, “The 38 acies of ocean-
front land {James Huni)
fought so hard to save from
the bulldozers are safe and
covered with picnic pavilions,
dune walkovers, nature trails
and ar observation tower.”

A dedication ceremony Feh.
18 honored Mr. Hunt. = A
crowd of more than 50 well-
“onlookers,
including Mr. Hunt’s mother



Lsev o Luct i€ DEnnon
‘demanded” presarvation of

S e eswtd |
H

kil P r the acreage being threatened,

: * Aii Goid Coin Jewelry and the citizenry overwhelr-
ingly supportedit.

o + Plus thousands of At @& meeting of the Plan-

ning Commission on Feh, 24,
1982, it reversed its previcus
vote, thus denying the PUD
plan, Contributing to that
decision were flood maps that
had been made public, show-
Ing nearly 90 percent of the
proposed PUD land would be
ineligible for federal flood
insurance, Also, the Vphisia
Couniy Coiuncil, after hearng
Mr. Hunt express his con.
cerns, voted to support the
preservation of'the inlet areq,

On Apri 14, 1982, the Ponce
Inlet Town Council voted
against the PUD develop-
ment.

After years of hard work and
endless meetings with local,
County and state officials,
James Hunt’s relentless quest
Io save the inlet finally pre-
vailed. Lighthouse Point Park
was officially opened on Nov,
14,1986, .

Today the inlet wilderness
area is permanently sealed
from corporate encroach-
ment. “The 58 acres of ocean-
front land (James Hunt)
fought so hard to save from

the bulldozers are safe and

v other items wanted ,
I *aw, used or damagad QK

v VER

E 4 §

N~
e
o

 Zosin g2 g

DANI0E BEACH

£ BRHongE 18,
> 51

> S

The Canat Street Historic District
of New Smyros Beach
& Mare ¥onteson Promoticas presen:

The Downtown
Music Festival

in conjunction with
Art Stroll and Gallery Walk

SATURDAY
MARCH 2, 2013
9:00 am - 11:00 pm

Bripg s Iawn chai for sutdoor events

2o .$31.00
05 e $ 163501

COR—— .11/ ]
osT— 7)1y 3
Paasien .$1610/0z.
.$1610/0z.
—— ||| ¥ 4TS

Covered with picnic pavilions,
: ‘ For schedules and venues go 10 dune walkovers, nature trails
-...-----..-.-5803 & UP canaisirestusb.com or pick-up a fiyer and an observation tower.”

&

at downtown businesses
5, TOSt events are FREE

Adedication ceremony Feb.
18 honored Mr. Huni.- A
crowd of more than 50 weii-
1. wishers . and * onlockers,
-+ including Mr. Hunt's mother
(soon to be 100) and his two

RRS——. V|| y X ) up
s OVEF $70,000
i $700 & up

daughters, gathered ar the
‘_ $240 & up Lighthouse Point Park pavil-
: - : Ion to congratulate the person
ll'llll.ll.ll..n'lllslso & up Whose valiant eﬁ@rts hel?ed

- . breserve an irreplaceable part
. $350 ot local natural heritage,

Mr. Hunt said a resident
once asked him, “Why are you
doing this?” Hig reply: “Its a
spiritual thing.”

~vanted

Soen

EROEWATER
SELE STORE s




Attachment 2
Town of Ponce Inlet

4300 South Atlantic Avenue
Ponce Inlet, Florida 32127
Phone: (386) 236-2150

Fax: (386) 322-6717
www.ponce-inlet.org

November 20, 2025

The Honorable Jeff Brower, Chair
Volusia County Council

123 W. Indiana Ave.

DeLand, FL 32720

Re: Supporting the request to rename Lighthouse Point Park to James Milton Hunt
Lighthouse Point Park

Dear Chairman Brower:

On behalf of the Town of Ponce Inlet Town Council, I am writing to express our support for the
proposal to rename Lighthouse Point Park to James Milton Hunt Lighthouse Point Park.

As outlined in the attached correspondence from Mr. Hunt’s daughter, Jennifer Hunt Longmire,
James Milton Hunt played an instrumental role in preserving the land that ultimately became
Lighthouse Point Park. In the early 1980s, Mr. Hunt led the “Don’t Condo Our Lighthouse”
campaign and worked tirelessly with local, state, and federal leaders, including Governor Bob
Graham and Senator Lawton Chiles, to protect this vital piece of coastal land from large-scale
development. His vision and dedication ensured that this treasured natural area would remain
accessible for public enjoyment and conservation for generations to come.

Mr. Hunt’s contributions to the creation and preservation of Lighthouse Point Park are well
documented and commemorated by a plaque already displayed at the park’s pavilion. Renaming
the park in his honor would be a fitting and lasting tribute to his legacy and his profound impact
on both the Town of Ponce Inlet and Volusia County.

We respectfully ask the Volusia County Council to approve this renaming in recognition of James
Milton Hunt’s extraordinary efforts and lasting contributions to the community.

Sincerely,

Lois A. Paritsky, Mayor
Town of Ponce Inlet

Attachment: Letter from Jennifer Hunt Longmire

CC: George Recktenwald, County Manager

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring, and fair in delivering community excellence while
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens the greatest value for their dollar.


http://www.ponce-inlet.org/

Dear Mayor Paritsky,

My name is Jennifer Hunt Longmire and | live in Daytona Beach. | am writing today to request that you
consider changing the name of Lighthouse Point Park in Ponce Inlet to The James Milton Hunt
Lighthouse Point Park. My father, James Milton Hunt, was instrumental in saving the land for the park
back in 1983. There is a plaque on the pavilion building in his honor. But | believe that all he did for
Ponce Inlet and having created the park, that it should be named after him. | will give you a short
synopsis of why this is so important.

My Dad, James Milton Hunt, grew up on South Atlantic Avenue in Wilbur-by-the Sea. He used to ride his
bike down to the inlet to fish and play in the mangroves. It was his favorite piece of land on Earth. Back
in early 1981, when he was working in Miami, he learned of the purchase of land by Transol at the end of
the inlet at Ponce Inlet. He quickly went to Ponce Inlet and found out it was true. They had bought all the
land and were going to put 500 condos and several mini malls on the property. He decided at that
moment that the land should be saved as a park for all people and future generations to enjoy. The
journey to start the "Don't Condo Our Lighthouse" campaign began. He moved to Ponce Inlet and

started the project to save his favorite piece of property. For several years he went to all the meetings in
Ponce Inlet and Volusia County regarding the property. He went to Washington to meet with Senator
Chiles about the land. He also traveled to Tallahassee and worked with Governor Graham and his "Save
our Coasts" program to acquire endangered valuable coastal lands set for development. He worked
tirelessly for years to save the land. He put his heart and soul into saving the land and preserving Ponce
Inlet as a town and not a city. Finally, at a meeting by the Cabinet of Florida on May 18, 1983, after much
debate and an eloquent speech by Frank Bruno, it all came down to Governor Graham calling a motion
and then cabinet member Smith moved that it be approved and so it was. The closing of the title
occurred on June 24, 1983 and the park was opened on November 14, 1986.

It's been a year since my Dad passed away somewhat unexpectantly. | finally feel I'm in a place that | can
help facilitate what needs to be done to change the name of the park to The James Milton Hunt
Lighthouse Point Park. It's been hard, but when | go to the park, | know he is with me. It was his special
place and he was so proud of it. He would go 3 to 4 times a week to walk it. He loved to see the people
fishing and enjoying the beach and walkways, just as he had always imagined it, so many years ago.

| hope you agree with my request to rename Lighthouse Point Park to The James Milton Hunt Lighthouse
Point Park to honor my Dad for everything he did to create the park and protect Ponce Inlet.

Sincerely,

Jennifer Hunt Longmire

684 Margaritaville Ave
Daytona Beach, FL 32124
617-816-4041
jhlongmire@msn.com



Meeting Date: 11/20/2025

Agenda Item: 9-B

Report to Town Council

Topic: Purchase of vacant property at 58 South Turn Circle for future
stormwater improvements.

l.

Summary:

Resolution 2025-17 — Supplemental appropriation from
the Land Acquisition Fund.

Approval of contract.

Please see the attached staff reports and supporting
documentation.

Suggested motion:

l.

Approval of Resolution 2025-17, authorizing the
supplemental appropriation of $350,000 from the Land
Acquisition Fund reserves account to the Land
Acquisition expenditure account for the purchase of
vacant property at 58 South Turn Circle for future public
stormwater improvements.

Approval of the contract to purchase vacant property at
58 South Turn Circle from BRM Property Holdings,
LLC. for future public stormwater improvements.

Requested by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager

Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager




Item 9-B-1

MEMORANDUM
Office of the Town Manager

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar.

To: Town Council
From: Michael E. Disher, Aicp, Town Manager
Date: November 11, 2025

Subject:  Resolution 2025-17 — Request for Supplemental Appropriation in the FY 25/26 budget
from the Land Acquisition Fund for purchase of vacant property at 58 South Turn
Circle for future public stormwater improvements

MEETING DATE: November 20, 2025

Staff is requesting Town Council approval of Resolution 2025-17, authorizing a supplemental
appropriation from the Land Acquisition Funds’ reserve account in the amount of $350,000. This
appropriation will be used to purchase vacant property at 58 South Turn Circle for future public
stormwater improvements, as directed by the Town Council on October 16, 2025. This property is
part of a closed drainage basin within the 500-year floodplain that experienced severe flooding
during Hurricanes Ian and Milton. Acquiring the property will enable the existing stormwater
drainage system to be improved. The current owner of the property has signed a contract to sell
the property to the Town, subject to Town Council approval.

The purchase is proposed be paid for out of Land Acquisition Fund reserves. The Land Acquisition
Fund is required to be used primarily for the acquisition, design, and construction of public
facilities. While money was specifically budgeted for purchasing the abutting property at 54 South
Turn Circle! this fiscal year, purchasing the subject property at 58 South Turn Circle will require
the use of funds held in reserve.

At the October 2025 meeting, the Council reviewed the revenue, expenditures, and reserves for
the Land Acquisition Fund in the adopted FY 25-26 budget. The Land Acquisition Fund is
estimated to start FY 25/26 with $767,718 in reserves®. After accounting for all currently budgeted
revenue (including carryforwards) and expenses, the Fund is expected to have $666,968 in
reserves. Appropriating an additional $350,000 from reserves will leave it with a balance of
$315,968, as shown in the table below.

! Purchased approved by the Town Council on September 18, 2025; closing scheduled on or before January 31,
2026 — TBD)
2 The actual reserve amount will not become known until after the completion of the FY 24/25 audit.



Res. 2025-17 - Supplemental Appropriations

FY 25/26 Estimated Reserves

Fv 25/26 Estimated Revenues [Incl, 5157 460 carmyforward)
Leasze Buy-off 2 vehiclas (transter to Cap Fire Eguip fund)
Fire Truck Paymment (transler 1o Cap Fire Eguip fund)

Fire station feasifality study and Bldg B, design

Building B const.

Beach 51 pond expansion

Land Accuisition - B4 5 Turm Cir

Land Acquisition - 58 5 Turn Cir - from reseres

FY 26/27 Estimated Reserves

L

o Y 4 A O Y 8 O

TET. 718

715,610
{40,300
{190,000
1590, 400y
(117 460
{19,000)
|360,000)
{350,000)

o

315, 964

Page 2

If approved, $350,000 will be transferred from the Land Acquisition Fund reserve account (# 302-

0000-381-9000) to the Land Acquisition Fund expense account (#302-0302-519-6100).

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Town Council approve Resolution 2025-17, authorizing the
supplemental appropriation of $350,000 from the Land Acquisition Fund reserves account to the
land acquisition expenditure account for the purchase of vacant property at 58 South Turn Circle

for future public stormwater improvements.



RESOLUTION 2025-17

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN
OF PONCE INLET, VOLUSIA COUNTY, FLORIDA,
AUTHORIZING A SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATION TO
THE TOWN’S BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026;
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

The Town of Ponce Inlet of Florida, in lawful session and in regular order of business
properly presented, finds that:

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida has adopted the annual
operating budget for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2025, specifying certain projected
revenues and expenditures; and

WHEREAS, from time to time, circumstances and events such as natural disasters,
operational changes, and unanticipated needs and opportunities, may require the original adopted
budget to be revised; and

WHEREAS, Section 6.04 of the Charter of the Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida provides for
Budget Amendments upon written request of the Town Manager, and the Town Council may by
resolution approve: (a) Supplemental Appropriations, (b) Emergency Appropriations, (c)
Reduction of Appropriations, and (d) Transfer of Appropriations; and

WHEREAS, based on a review, the Town Manager has requested amendments to the
Fiscal Year 2025-2026 budget, as provided hereinafter.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. That the annual operating budget of the Town of Ponce Inlet as adopted for
the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2025, is hereby revised and amended to provide for
supplemental appropriations in the amount of $350,000 from Land Acquisition Fund reserve
account as provided in Exhibit "A," attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.
Except as amended herein, the annual operating budget for the Town of Ponce Inlet for the fiscal
year beginning October 1, 2025, shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 2. Conflicting Resolutions. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict
herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

SECTION 3. Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this resolution is
held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, that holding shall in
no way affect the remaining portion of this resolution.

Resolution 2025-17
Page 1 of 3



SECTION 4. Effective Date. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its
adoption.

It was moved by Councilmember and seconded by Councilmember
that said Resolution be passed. A roll call vote of the Town Council on said motion
resulted as follows:
Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1
Councilmember Milano, Seat #2
Councilmember White, Seat #3
Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4

Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5

Passed this 20™ day of November 2025.
Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida

Lois A. Paritsky, Mayor
ATTEST:

Kim Cherbano, CMC
Town Clerk

Resolution 2025-17
Page 2 of 3



Exhibit A

In accordance with Section 6.04 of the Charter of the Town of Ponce Inlet, it is recommended that the
following accounts in the Town budget be increased by the amounts set forth herein for the purpose

described.

Account Number

Account Title

Revenues/Sources: increase/(decrease)

LAND ACQUISITION FUND

302-0000-381-9000 TRANSFER FROM RESERVES $ 350,000
Total Revenues $ 350,000

Expenditures: increase/(decrease)

LAND ACQUISITION FUND

302-0302-519-6100 LAND ACQUISITION $ 350,000
Total Expenses $ 350,000

Resolution 2025-17
Page 3 of 3




[tem 9-B-2

MEMORANDUM

Town of Ponce Inlet — Office of the Town Manager
The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar.

To: Town Council
From: Michael E. Disher, AiCP, Town Manager
Date: November 10, 2025

Subject:  Approval of contract to purchase vacant property at 58 South Turn Circle for future
public stormwater improvements

MEETING DATE: November 20, 2025

At its October 16, 2025 meeting, the Town Council authorized Staff to begin proceedings to
purchase an undeveloped residential lot at 58 South Turn Circle for public purposes. The subject
property is located immediately between the Town’s stormwater retention pond on the south side
of Inlet Point Boulevard and another property at 54 South Turn Circle the Council had previously
authorized for purchase in September. The property at 58 South Turn Circle has also recently
become available, and the owner is willing to sell to the Town. The property’s physical connection
to the Inlet Point pond and the abutting property at 54 South Circle will allow them to be combined
to significantly increase the stormwater retention capacity for this area.

The subject property is 11,340 s.f. in size, measuring 108’ x 105°, and is within the stormwater
management system service area stretching from Bay Harbour Drive to Beach Street. This area
experienced heavy flooding during Hurricanes Ian and Milton, due in part to its location within
the 500-year floodplain inside of a closed drainage basin. In the short term, acquiring the property
will ensure that it is not developed, thus preserving its natural drainage function. Long term, the
property will be used to help improve the capacity of the stormwater management system.
Purchasing the property aligns with the Town’s resiliency goals and plans prepared to date.

Following Council direction, staff had the property surveyed. An appraisal was not conducted
given the substantial similarity in size, condition, and location to the abutting property at 54 South
Turn Circle. The Town prepared a Letter of Intent to purchase, which was accepted by the owner,
BRM Property Holdings, LLC. The purchase contract was then drafted by the Town Attorney for
the owner’s signature. The owner has signed and returned the contract.

Contract details

Sale Price: $350,000 (same as for 54 South Turn Circle)
Down Payment: $0
Effective Date: Date of approval by the Town Council and execution by the Town

Closing Date: On or before January 31, 2026, exact date TBD



Funds for the purchase are available now in the Land Acquisition Fund reserves, subject to Council
approval of a supplemental appropriation for that amount.

Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of the contract to purchase vacant property at 58 South Turn Circle
from BRM Property Holdings, LLC for future public stormwater improvements.

Attachments
1. Stormwater service area
2. Flood Risk Map
3. Boundary survey
4. Letter of Intent
5. Purchase contract



ATTACHMENT 1

54 Southturn Circle with Stormwater Service Area

"~ @ Stormwater
== Facility

Stormwater
cility




ATTACHMENT 2
Flood Risk Map

-

=R ) i A i -F.'- ek
e e
' 1 Subject Property
| 500-Year
Flood Zone |
r Canter ._,; A




THIS SURVEY IS BASED ON
EXISTING FOUND FIELD

REVISIONS
ELEVATIONS REFER TO
UMMM FFE = (PR REQUIREMENTS)
FLO0D IO X COMMNTY 120512 PHEL  12127C0538  (09-29-17
GEMERAL NOTES:
1. DATE OF PELD SURVEY:  11-06-2025 m Wmm @ Digitally signed
2. DIMENSIONS SHOWN ARE M FEET AND DECIMALS THEREOF. by gregg cullum
3. THS SURVEY [5 BASED ON EXSTING FIELD MONUMENTATION. Date: 2025.11.06
4. NO UNDERGROUND FOUNDATIONS WERE LOCATED. ﬁC——Cg 21:04:49 -05'00°

5. NO UNDERGROUND UTLITIES WERE LOCATED EXCEFT AS SHOWN.

6. BEARINGS  REFERENCED TO THE CENTERLINE OF SOUTH TURN CIRCLE, BENG S7424'00°W

7. NOT VALD WITHOUT THE SIGNATURE AND ORIGMAL RAISED SEAL OF A FLORDA LICENSED SURVEYOR & WAPPER.
8. THS SURVEY WAS DONE WITHOUT THE BENEFTT OF AN ABSTRACT. THERE MAYBE ADOIONAL EASEMENTS,
RESTRICTIONS AND/OR: OTHER MATTERS NOT SHOWN THAT COULD AFFECT THS PROPERTY THAT MAYBE FOUND N
THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF THS COUNTY.

9. LEGAL DESCRIPTION FURMISHED BY CLIENT.

ATTACHMENT 3

)

750.UE.
10DU.E)

E

LEGAL DESCRIPTION (A5 FURMISHED:
10T NUMBER(S): 7 SUB'M: SOUTH TURN SUBDMSION
WAP BOOK: 44 PHGE(S) M4 PUBLIC RECORDS OF YOLUSH COUNTY, FLORIDA,
ADORESS: 58 SOUTH TURN CR, PONCE NLET, 32127 VOLUSI COUNTY, FLORTA.
LEGEHD / ABBREVITIONS:
- FDOT.  FLORDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
KSPH,  ASPHALT BSE EASEMENT PG PMGE
AS.  AUMMLM SHED FFE  FINSHED FLOOR ELEVAMON  PLAT  PLAT DATA
AT AR CONDTIONER FM. FIELD NEASURED POE.  PONT OF BEGINNNG
AU AERWL UTLTES M. FOUND POC.  POINT OF COMMENCEMENT
B BULDING FPL  FLORDA POWER & UGHT PP POWER POLE
BUD.  BOULEVARD IP. RN PPE PRO.  PROPOSED
CAC,  CALCULATED 1% RON ROD RCP  REMFORCED CONCRETE PPE
CLF.  CHAM LI FENCE WE WP BOOK RAW  RIGHT OF WAY
G CONCRETE MOMUMENT MO AL & DSC _@u RADIL
WP CORRUGATED METAL PIPE (MR)  NON-RADWL RESDENCE
CONC.  CONCRETE OR. OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK S/ SDEWALK
DESC.  DESCRPION PLP.  PERMAMENT COMTROL POMT TP,  TYPKAL

DRANAGE & UTILITY EASEMENTS PER PLAT
FRONT 10 FEET (10D.U.E.)

SIDE 7.5 FEET
REAR 10 FEET

BOUNDARY SURVEY

THIS SURVEY IS PREPARED FOR
THE SOLE AND EXCLUSNE
BENEFIT OF THE ENTITIES AND\OR
INDMVIDUALS LISTED HEREON, ON
THE MOST CURRENT DATE, AND
SHALL NOT BE RELIED UPOM BY -~
ANY OTHER ENTITY OR INDMIDUAL

This item has been electronically signed and

sealed by Gregg Cullum

Printed copies of this document are not considered
i d lod " "

using a Digital Signature.

an 9
verified on any electronic copies.

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS SURVEY OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST
ORMATION AMD BELIEF, AS SURVEYED IN THE FIELD UNDER MY SUPERVISION ON

RTHER CERTIFY THAT THIS SURVEY MEETS THE MINIMUM TECHMICAL

STANDARDS SET FORTH IN FYORIDA ADMINISTRATWE CODE CHAPTER 5017, ADOPTED BY THE FLORIDW

#5095

GREGG S, CULLUM
PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR & MAPPER
LICENSED BUSINESS #7129
SUITE 205
FORT QRANGE, FLORIDA 32128

LLUM LAND SURVEYING INC.
SBEI 5. WILLIAMSON BLVD.

Ol
.
)

THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET
SURVEYOR AND MAPPER AND SEALED WITH AN
EMBOSSED SEAL

NOT VALID UNLESS SIGNED BY A PROFESSIONAL

FIELD BODK/PAGE:  LOOSE




ATTACHMENT 4

Town of Ponce Inlet

4300 South Atlantic Avenue
Ponce Inlet, Florida 32127
Phone: (386) 236-2150

Fax: (386) 322-6717
www.ponce-inlet.org

LETTER OF INTENT

The purpose of this Letter of Intent is to identify, address and express the terms and
conditions of a basic understanding between the Town of Ponce Inlet, a Florida municipal
corporation, acting through its Town Manager (“Ponce Inlet”), and BRM Property Holdings, LLC
(“Owner”™).

0)) GENERAL INTENT. It is hereby the intent of Ponce Inlet to purchase that property
identified by Tax Parcel Identification Number 6430-23-00-0070 (Alt. Key No. 5315568)
located at 58 South Turn Circle, Ponce Inlet Florida, 32127 in Volusia County, Florida,
(“Property”) for the public purpose of constructing a public stormwater retention facility.
Property shall be determined by boundary survey, obtained by the Town, at the Town's
expense, within a thirty (30) day period following execution of this letter by the Owner. The
intended land to purchase is identified by Legal Description as LOT 7 SOUTH TURN SUB
MB 44 PG 34 PER OR 4487 PG 4920 PER OR 6358 PG 0150 PER OR 7408 PGS 1331-
1332 PER OR 7954 PG 3126 PER OR 8275 PGS 2769 THRU 2771 INC.

(2) PURCHASE PRICE AND AGREEMENT TERMS. It is intended by Ponce Inlet that
the parties enter into a detailed purchase and sale agreement, to be prepared by the Town
Attorney of Ponce Inlet. The purchase price shall be an amount not to exceed Three Hundred
Fifty Thousand Dollars ($350.000.00). In addition, any such purchase and sale agreement
shall be contingent upon the Town's satisfaction with its inspection of the Property. The
purchase price will be inclusive of Real Estate Broker's commissions, if any. It is intended
that Ponce Inlet will pay the premium for the title insurance policy, Ponce Inlet’s attorneys’
fees, and for the title search and closing services. Owner will pay Owner’s attorneys’ fees,
taxes on the deed, and recording fees for documents needed to cure any title defects.

3) BINDING ACTION. This Letter of Intent does not and is not intended to contractually
bind the parties. The parties shall not be contractually bound unless and until they enter into
a formal, written purchase and sale agreement, which must be in form and content
satisfactory to each party and/or to each party's legal counsel, in their sole discretion. The
purchase and sale agreement to be entered into by Ponce Inlet and Owner must be submitted
to the Ponce Inlet Town Council for final approval and will not be binding on the Town
without official action. Notwithstanding the provisions of this paragraph, the Owner agrees
not to negotiate with any other party during the inspection period as set forth hereinafter.

(4) CONSIDERATION AND EXCLUSIVITY OF NEGOTIATIONS. Owner recognizes
that Ponce Inlet has relied upon the representations made herein by Owner, and Ponce Inlet
recognizes that Owner has relied upon the representations made herein by Ponce Inlet's
Town Manager. Accordingly, based upon the foregoing, Owner agrees not to negotiate a
purchase and sale agreement with any other party for a period of sixty (60) days from the
date hereof while the Town is engaged in its inspection of the Property. The Owner agrees

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring, and fair in delivering community excellence while
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens the greatest value for their dollar.



to allow the Town and its contractors to access the Property as needed at all reasonable
times during the sixty (60) day period following the date hereof. Reciprocally, the Town
Manager will use his best efforts to submit a purchase and sale agreement to the Ponce Inlet
Town Council on or before November 20. 2025, which is conditioned upon the receipt of a
boundary survey and a satisfactory inspection of the Property.

(5) AUTHORIZATION CERTIFICATE. The undersigned parties certify that as
representatives of their respective entities, each had at the time of execution of this Letter
of Intent, full power and authority to execute this Letter of Intent.

BRM PROPERTY HOLDINGS, LL.C TOWN OF PONCE INLET
(OWNER)

Michael E. Disher, Town Manager

Print: Meg Mosher

Date: [0 /?’l/?—'5

Title: Vice President

Date: 10/20/2025 Approved as to form and legality as to
the Town of Ponce Inlet only.




ATTACHMENT 5

Vacant Land Contract

1. Sale and Purchase ("Contract"): BRM Property Holdings, LLC

© 00 ~NO OB WN P

el el
w N P O

14
15
16
17
18
19
20

21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

32
33
34
35
36
37

38
39
40
41
42

43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50

51
52

("Seller") and Town of Ponce Inlet
("Buyer") (the "parties") agree to sell and buy on the terms and conditions specified below the property ("Property")
described as:
Address: 58 South Turn Circle, Ponce Inlet, Florida 32127
Legal Description:
Tax Parcel Identification Number 6430-23-00-0070 (Alt. Key No. 5315568)
LOT 7 SOUTH TURN SUB MB 44 PG 34 PER OR 4487 PG 4920 PER OR
6358 PG 0150 PER OR 7408 PGS 1331-1332 PER OR 7954 PG 3126 P
ER OR 8275 PGS 2769 THRU 2771 INC
SEC __ /TWP/_/IRNG ___ of County, Florida. Real Property ID No.:

including all improvements existing on the Property and the following additional property:

Purchase Price: (U.S. CUIMTENCY) ......oiiiiiiiieeiee ettt ettt ettt ste e e nbe s eabe e sbeeenee e saneeenes $ 350,000.00
All deposits will be made payable to "Escrow Agent" named below and held in escrow by:

Escrow Agent's Name: Gibraltar Title, Inc.

Escrow Agent's Contact Person: _Andrew Dinnerstein

Escrow Agent's Address: 12 SE 7th Street, Suite 190, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301

Escrow Agent's Phone: _954-771-7601

Escrow Agent's Email: ahd@pitesg.com

(a) Initial deposit ($0 if left blank) (Check if applicable)
O accompanies offer

O will be delivered to Escrow Agent within days (3 days if left blank)
after EffECHIVE DALE .......oceiiie ettt sttt e naee e eneeeene $
(b) Additional deposit will be delivered to Escrow Agent (Check if applicable)
O within days (10 days if left blank) after Effective Date
0 within days (3 days if left blank) after expiration of Due Diligence Period .......... $
(c) Total Financing (see Paragraph 6) (express as a dollar amount or percentage)................. $
(¢ other: $
(e) Balance to close (not including Buyer's closing costs, prepaid items, and prorations)
to be paid at closing by wire transfer or other Collected funds...........ccccovcveeviieesccieee e, $ 350,000.00

(f) U (Complete only if purchase price will be determined based on a per unit cost instead of a fixed price.) The
unit used to determine the purchase price is U lot U acre U square foot U other (specify):
prorating areas of less than a full unit. The purchase price will be $ per unit based on a
calculation of total area of the Property as certified to Seller and Buyer by a Florida licensed surveyor in
accordance with Paragraph 8(c). The following rights of way and other areas will be excluded from the
calculation:

Time for Acceptance; Effective Date: Unless this offer is signed by Seller and Buyer and an executed copy
delivered to all parties on or before December 1, 2025 , this offer will be withdrawn and Buyer's deposit, if
any, will be returned. The time for acceptance of any counter-offer will be 3 days after the date the counter-offer is
delivered. The "Effective Date" of this Contract is the date on which the last one of the Seller and Buyer
has signed or initialed and delivered this offer or the final counter-offer.

Closing Date: This transaction will close on °r before January 30, 2026 ("Closing Date"), unless specifically
extended by other provisions of this Contract. The Closing Date will prevail over all other time periods including,
but not limited to, Financing and Due Diligence periods. However, if the Closing Date occurs on a Saturday,
Sunday, or national legal holiday, it will extend to 5:00 p.m. (where the Property is located) of the next business
day. In the event insurance underwriting is suspended on Closing Date and Buyer is unable to obtain property
insurance, Buyer may postpone closing for up to 5 days after the insurance underwriting suspension is lifted. If
this transaction does not close for any reason, Buyer will immediately return all Seller provided documents and
other items.

Extension of Closing Date: If Paragraph 6(b) is checked and Closing Funds from Buyer's lender(s) are not
available on Closing Date due to Consumer Financial Protection Bureau Closing Disclosure delivery requirements

Buyer ( ) ( ) and Sellem_) acknowledge receipt of a copy of this page, which is 1 of 8 pages.
VAC-14xxxx  Rev 3/25 ©2025 Florida Realtors®
Licensed to Alta Star Software and 1D1828074.447068

Software and added formatting © 2025 Alta Star Software, all rights reserved. « www.altastar.com ¢ (877) 279-8898



53 ("CFPB Requirements), if applicable, then Closing Date shall be extended for such period necessary to satisfy

54 CFPB Requirements, provided such period shall not exceed 10 days.
55 6. Financing: (Check as applicable)
56 (@) X Buyer will pay cash for the Property with no financing contingency.
57 (b) O This Contract is contingent on Buyer qualifying for and obtaining the commitment(s) or approval(s)
58 specified below ("Financing") within days after Effective Date (Closing Date or 30 days after Effective
59 Date, whichever occurs first, if left blank) ("Financing Period"). Buyer will apply for Financing within
60 days after Effective Date (5 days if left blank) and will timely provide any and all credit, employment, financial,
61 and other information required by the lender. If Buyer, after using diligence and good faith, cannot obtain the
62 Financing within the Financing Period, either party may terminate this Contract and Buyer's deposit(s) will be
63 returned.
64 (1) U New Financing: Buyer will secure a commitment for new third party financing for $
65 or % of the purchase price at (Check one) [ a fixed rate not exceeding % [ an
66 adjustable interest rate not exceeding % at origination (a fixed rate at the prevailing interest rate
67 based on Buyer's creditworthiness if neither choice is selected). Buyer will keep Seller and Broker fully
68 informed of the loan application status and progress and authorizes the lender or mortgage broker to
69 disclose all such information to Seller and Broker.
70 (2) U seller Financing: Buyer will execute a Ufirst U second purchase money note and mortgage to
71 Seller in the amount of $ , bearing annual interest at % and payable as follows:
72
73 The mortgage, note, and any security agreement will be in a form acceptable to Seller and will follow
74 forms generally accepted in the county where the Property is located; will provide for a late payment fee
75 and acceleration at the mortgagee's option if Buyer defaults; will give Buyer the right to prepay without
76 penalty all or part of the principal at any time(s) with interest only to date of payment; will be due on
77 conveyance or sale; will provide for release of contiguous parcels, if applicable; and will require Buyer to
78 keep liability insurance on the Property, with Seller as additional named insured. Buyer authorizes Seller
79 to obtain credit, employment, and other necessary information to determine creditworthiness for the
80 financing. Seller will, within 10 days after Effective Date, give Buyer written notice of whether or not Seller
81 will make the loan.
82 (3) U Mortgage Assumption: Buyer will take title subject to and assume and pay existing first mortgage to
83
84 LN# in the approximate amount of $ currently payable at
85 $ per month, including principal, interest, L taxes and insurance, and having a
86 U fixed U other (describe)
87 interest rate of % which 0 will O will not escalate upon assumption. Any variance in the mortgage
88 will be adjusted in the balance due at closing with no adjustment to purchase price. Buyer will purchase
89 Seller's escrow account dollar for dollar. If the interest rate upon transfer exceeds % or the
90 assumption/transfer fee exceeds $ , either party may elect to pay the excess, failing
91 which this Contract will terminate; and Buyer's deposit(s) will be returned. If the lender disapproves
92 Buyer, this Contract will terminate; and Buyer's deposit(s) will be returned.
93 7. Assignability: (Check one) Buyer L1 may assign and thereby be released from any further liability under this
94 Contract, H1 may assign but not be released from liability under this Contract, or 3 may not assign this Contract.
95 8. Title: Seller has the legal capacity to and will convey marketable title to the Property by X statutory warranty
96 deed [0 special warranty deed [ other (specify) , free of liens, easements,
97 and encumbrances of record or known to Seller, but subject to property taxes for the year of closing; covenants,
98 restrictions, and public utility easements of record; existing zoning and governmental regulations; and (list any
99 other matters to which title will be subject) ,
100 provided there exists at closing no violation of the foregoing.
101 (a) Title Evidence: The party who pays for the owner's title insurance policy will select the closing agent and pay
102 for the title search, including tax and lien search (including municipal lien search) if performed, and all other
103 fees charged by closing agent. Seller will deliver to Buyer, at
104 (Check one) U Seller's X Buyer's expense and
105 (Check one) X within 15 days after Effective Date U at least days before Closing Date,
106 (Check one)
107 (1) X atitle insurance commitment by a Florida licensed title insurer setting forth those matters to be
108 discharged by Seller at or before closing and, upon Buyer recording the deed, an owner's policy in the

Buyer ( ) ( ) and Seller ( 725{2 ) acknowledge receipt of a copy of this page, which is 2 of 8 pages.
VAC-14xxxx  Rev 3/25 ©2025 Florida Realtors®
Licensed to Alta Star Software and 1D1828074.447068

Software and added formatting © 2025 Alta Star Software, all rights reserved. « www.altastar.com ¢ (877) 279-8898



109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133

134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159

160
161
162
163
164

amount of the purchase price for fee simple title subject only to the exceptions stated above. If Buyer is
paying for the owner's title insurance policy and Seller has an owner's policy, Seller will deliver a copy to
Buyer within 15 days after Effective Date.

(2) O an abstract of title, prepared or brought current by an existing abstract firm or certified as correct by an
existing firm. However, if such an abstract is not available to Seller, then a prior owner's title policy
acceptable to the proposed insurer as a base for reissuance of coverage may be used. The prior policy will
include copies of all policy exceptions and an update in a format acceptable to Buyer from the policy
effective date and certified to Buyer or Buyer's closing agent together with copies of all documents
recited in the prior policy and in the update. If such an abstract or prior policy is not available to Seller,
then (1) above will be the title evidence.

(b) Title Examination: After receipt of the title evidence, Buyer will, within 20 days (10 days if left blank) but
no later than Closing Date, deliver written notice to Seller of title defects. Title will be deemed acceptable to
Buyer if (i) Buyer fails to deliver proper notice of defects or (ii) Buyer delivers proper written notice and Seller
cures the defects within days (30 days if left blank) ("Cure Period") after receipt of the notice. If the
defects are cured within the Cure Period, closing will occur within 10 days after receipt by Buyer of notice of
such cure. Seller may elect not to cure defects if Seller reasonably believes any defect cannot be cured within
the Cure Period. If the defects are not cured within the Cure Period, Buyer will have 10 days after receipt of
notice of Seller's inability to cure the defects to elect whether to terminate this Contract or accept title subject
to existing defects and close the transaction without reduction in purchase price.

(c) Survey: Buyer may, at Buyer's expense, have the Property surveyed and must deliver written notice to
Seller, within 5 days after receiving survey but not later than 5 days before Closing Date, of any
encroachments on the Property, encroachments by the Property's improvements on other lands, or deed
restriction or zoning violations. Any such encroachment or violation will be treated in the same manner as a
title defect and Seller's and Buyer's obligations will be determined in accordance with Paragraph 8(b).

(d) Ingress and Egress: Seller warrants that the Property presently has ingress and egress.

9. Property Condition: Seller will deliver the Property to Buyer at closing in its present "as is" condition, with
conditions resulting from Buyer's Inspections and casualty damage, if any, excepted. Seller will not engage in or
permit any activity that would materially alter the Property's condition without the Buyer's prior written consent.

(@) Inspections: (Check (1) or (2))

(1) X Due Diligence Period: Buyer will, at Buyer's expense and within 60 days (30 days if left blank)
("Due Diligence Period") after Effective Date and in Buyer's sole and absolute discretion, determine
whether the Property is suitable for Buyer's intended use. During the Due Diligence Period, Buyer may
conduct a Phase 1 environmental assessment and any other tests, analyses, surveys, and investigations
("Inspections") that Buyer deems necessary to determine to Buyer's satisfaction the Property's
engineering, architectural, and environmental properties; zoning and zoning restrictions; subdivision
statutes; soil and grade; availability of access to public roads, water, and other utilities; consistency with
local, state, and regional growth management plans; availability of permits, government approvals, and
licenses; and other inspections that Buyer deems appropriate. If the Property must be rezoned, Buyer will
obtain the rezoning from the appropriate government agencies. Seller will sign all documents Buyer is
required to file in connection with development or rezoning approvals. Seller gives Buyer, its agents,
contractors, and assigns, the right to enter the Property at any time during the Due Diligence Period for the
purpose of conducting Inspections, provided, however, that Buyer, its agents, contractors, and assigns

enter the Property and conduct Inspectlons at their own risk. Buyewaﬂ-mdemmﬁ,md-held&eﬂeh

Gt - ° Buyer WI||
not engage in any act|V|ty that could result ina constructlon I|en belng flled aga|nst the Property without
Seller's prior written consent. If this transaction does not close, Buyer will, at Buyer's expense, (i) repair
all damages to the Property resulting from the Inspections and return the Property to the condition it was in
before conducting the Inspections and (i) release to Seller all reports and other work generated as a
result of the Inspections.

Before expiration of the Due Diligence Period, Buyer must deliver written notice to Seller of Buyer's
determination of whether or not the Property is acceptable. Buyer's failure to comply with this notice
requirement will constitute acceptance of the Property as suitable for Buyer's intended use in its "as is"
condition. If the Property is unacceptable to Buyer and written notice of this fact is timely delivered to
Seller, this Contract will be deemed terminated, and Buyer's deposit(s) will be returned.

Buyer ( ) ( ) and Seller WL) acknowledge receipt of a copy of this page, which is 3 of 8 pages.
VAC-14xxxx  Rev 3/25 ©2025 Florida Realtors®
Licensed to Alta Star Software and 1D1828074.447068

Software and added formatting © 2025 Alta Star Software, all rights reserved. « www.altastar.com ¢ (877) 279-8898



165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185

186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221

(2) U No Due Diligence Period: Buyer is satisfied that the Property is suitable for Buyer's purposes,
including being satisfied that either public sewerage and water are available to the Property or the
Property will be approved for the installation of a well and/or private sewerage disposal system and that
existing zoning and other pertinent regulations and restrictions, such as subdivision or deed restrictions,
concurrency, growth management, and environmental conditions, are acceptable to Buyer. This Contract
is not contingent on Buyer conducting any further investigations.

(b) Government Regulations: Changes in government regulations and levels of service which affect Buyer's
intended use of the Property will not be grounds for terminating this Contract if the Due Diligence Period has
expired or if Paragraph 9(a)(2) is selected.

(c) Flood Zone: Buyer is advised to verify by survey, with the lender, and with appropriate government agencies
which flood zone the Property is in, whether flood insurance is required, and what restrictions apply to
improving the Property and rebuilding in the event of casualty.

(d) Coastal Construction Control Line (“CCCL"): If any part of the Property lies seaward of the CCCL as
defined in Section 161.053, Florida Statutes, Seller will provide Buyer with an affidavit or survey as required
by law delineating the line's location on the Property, unless Buyer waives this requirement in writing. The
Property being purchased may be subject to coastal erosion and to federal, state, or local regulations that
govern coastal property, including delineation of the CCCL, rigid coastal protection structures, beach
nourishment, and the protection of marine turtles. Additional information can be obtained from the Florida
Department of Environmental Protection, including whether there are significant erosion conditions associated
with the shore line of the Property being purchased.

U Buyer waives the right to receive a CCCL affidavit or survey.

10. Closing Procedure; Costs: Closing w 8 : =

conducted by mail or electronic means. If tltle insurance insures Buyer for tltle defects arlsmg between the title

binder effective date and recording of Buyer's deed, closing agent will disburse at closing the net sale proceeds to

Seller (in local cashier's check if Seller requests in writing at least 5 days before closing) and brokerage fees to

Broker as per Paragraph 21. In addition to other expenses provided in this Contract, Seller and Buyer will pay the

costs indicated below.

(a) Seller Costs:

Taxes on deed

Recording fees for documents needed to cure title
. " NN I s

Estoppel Fee(s)

Other:

(b) Buyer Costs:

Taxes and recording fees on notes and mortgages
Recording fees on the deed and financing statements
Loan expenses

Title evidence (if applicable under Paragraph 8)
Lender's title policy at the simultaneous issue rate
Inspections

Survey

Insurance

Other:

(c) Prorations: The following items will be made current and prorated as of the day before Closing Date: real
estate taxes (including special benefit tax liens imposed by a CDD), interest, bonds, assessments, leases, and
other Property expenses and revenues. If taxes and assessments for the current year cannot be determined,
the previous year's rates will be used with adjustment for any exemptions.

(d) Special Assessment by Public Body: Regarding special assessments imposed by a public body, Seller will
pay (i) the full amount of liens that are certified, confirmed, and ratified before closing and (ii) the amount of the
last estimate of the assessment if an improvement is substantially completed as of Effective Date but has not
resulted in a lien before closing; and Buyer will pay all other amounts. If special assessments may be paid in
installments, U Seller L Buyer (Buyer if left blank) will pay installments due after closing. If Seller is
checked, Seller will pay the assessment in full before or at the time of closing. Public body does not include a
Homeowners' or Condominium Association.

(e) PROPERTY TAX DISCLOSURE SUMMARY: BUYER SHOULD NOT RELY ON THE SELLER'S CURRENT
PROPERTY TAXES AS THE AMOUNT OF PROPERTY TAXES THAT BUYER MAY BE OBLIGATED TO
PAY IN THE YEAR SUBSEQUENT TO PURCHASE. A CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP OR PROPERTY

Buyer ( ) ( ) and Seller (22 Qié ) acknowledge receipt of a copy of this page, which is 4 of 8 pages.
VAC-14xxxx  Rev 3/25 ©2025 Florida Realtors®
Licensed to Alta Star Software and 1D1828074.447068

Software and added formatting © 2025 Alta Star Software, all rights reserved. « www.altastar.com ¢ (877) 279-8898



222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232

233
234
235
236
237
238
239

240
241
242
243
244
245

246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254

255
256
257
258
259
260

261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

IMPROVEMENTS TRIGGERS REASSESSMENTS OF THE PROPERTY THAT COULD RESULT IN HIGHER
PROPERTY TAXES. IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS CONCERNING VALUATION, CONTACT THE
COUNTY PROPERTY APPRAISER'S OFFICE FOR FURTHER INFORMATION.

(f) Foreign Investment in Real Property Tax Act ("FIRPTA"): If Seller is a "foreign person” as defined by
FIRPTA, Seller and Buyer will comply with FIRPTA, which may require Seller to provide additional cash at
closing.

(g) 1031 Exchange: If either Seller or Buyer wish to enter into a like-kind exchange (either simultaneously with
closing or after) under Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code ("Exchange"), the other party will cooperate
in all reasonable respects to effectuate the Exchange including executing documents, provided, however, that
the cooperating party will incur no liability or cost related to the Exchange and that the closing will not be
contingent upon, extended, or delayed by the Exchange.

Computation of Time: Calendar days will be used when computing time periods, except time periods of 5 days
or less. Time periods of 5 days or less will be computed without including Saturday, Sunday, or national legal
holidays specified in 5 U.S.C. 6103(a). Other than time for acceptance and Effective Date as set forth in Paragraph
3, any time periods provided for or dates specified in this Contract, whether preprinted, handwritten, typewritten or
inserted herein, which shall end or occur on a Saturday, Sunday, or national legal holiday (see 5 U.S.C. 6103)
shall extend until 5:00 p.m. (where the Property is located) of the next business day. Time is of the essence in
this Contract.

Risk of Loss; Eminent Domain: If any portion of the Property is materially damaged by casualty before closing
or Seller negotiates with a governmental authority to transfer all or part of the Property in lieu of eminent domain
proceedings or an eminent domain proceeding is initiated, Seller will promptly inform Buyer. Either party may
terminate this Contract by written notice to the other within 10 days after Buyer's receipt of Seller's notification,
and Buyer's deposit(s) will be returned, failing which Buyer will close in accordance with this Contract and receive
all payments made by the governmental authority or insurance company, if any.

Force Majeure: Seller or Buyer will not be required to perform any obligation under this Contract or be liable to
each other for damages so long as the performance or non-performance of the obligation is delayed, caused, or
prevented by an act of God or force majeure. An "act of God or “force majeure" is defined as hurricanes,
earthquakes, floods, fire, unusual transportation delays, wars, insurrections, and any other cause not reasonably
within the control of Seller or Buyer and which by the exercise of due diligence the non-performing party is unable
in whole or in part to prevent or overcome. All time periods, including Closing Date, will be extended for the period
that the act of God or force majeure is in place. However, in the event that such act of God or force majeure event
continues beyond 30 days, either party may terminate this Contract by delivering written notice to the other; and
Buyer's deposit(s) will be returned.

Notices: All notices will be in writing and delivered to the parties and Broker by mail, personal delivery, or
electronic means. Buyer's failure to timely deliver written notice to Seller, when such notice is required by
this Contract, regarding any contingency will render that contingency null and void, and this Contract will
be construed as if the contingency did not exist. Any notice, document, or item delivered to or received by
an attorney or licensee (including a transactions broker) representing a party will be as effective as if
delivered to or received by that party.

Complete Agreement; Persons Bound: This Contract is the entire agreement between Seller and Buyer.
Except for brokerage agreements, no prior or present agreements will bind Seller, Buyer, or Broker unless
incorporated into this Contract. Modifications of this Contract will not be binding unless in writing, signed or
initialed, and delivered by the party to be bound. Electronic signatures will be acceptable and binding. This
Contract, signatures, initials, documents referenced in this Contract, counterparts, and written modifications
communicated electronically or on paper will be acceptable for all purposes, including delivery, and will be binding.
Handwritten or typewritten terms inserted in or attached to this Contract prevail over preprinted terms. If any
provision of this Contract is or becomes invalid or unenforceable, all remaining provisions will continue to be fully
effective. Seller and Buyer will use diligence and good faith in performing all obligations under this Contract. This
Contract will not be recorded in any public record. The terms "Seller,"” "Buyer," and "Broker" may be singular or
plural. This Contract is binding on the heirs, administrators, executors, personal representatives, and assigns, if
permitted, of Seller, Buyer, and Broker.

Buyer ( ) ( ) and Seller (MfL) acknowledge receipt of a copy of this page, which is 5 of 8 pages.
VAC-14xxxx  Rev 3/25 ©2025 Florida Realtors®
Licensed to Alta Star Software and 1D1828074.447068

Software and added formatting © 2025 Alta Star Software, all rights reserved. « www.altastar.com ¢ (877) 279-8898



273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284

285
286
287

288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296

297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316

317
318
319
320
321

322
323
324
325
326

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Default and Dispute Resolution: This Contract will be construed under Florida law. This Paragraph will survive

closing or termination of this Contract.

(a) Seller Default: If Seller fails, neglects, or refuses to perform Seller's obligations under this Contract, Buyer
may elect to receive a return of Buyer's deposit(s) without thereby waiving any action for damages resulting
from Seller's breach and may seek to recover such damages or seek specific performance. Seller will also be
liable for the full amount of the brokerage fee.

(b) Buyer Default: If Buyer fails, neglects, or refuses to perform Buyer's obligations under this Contract,
including payment of deposit(s), within the time(s) specified, Seller may elect to recover and retain the
deposit(s), paid and agreed to be paid, for the account of Seller as agreed upon liquidated damages,
consideration for execution of this Contract, and in full settlement of any claims, whereupon Seller and Buyer
will be relieved from all further obligations under this Contract; or Seller, at Seller's option, may proceed in
equity to enforce Seller's rights under this Contract.

Attorney's Fees; Costs: In any litigation permitted by this Contract, the prevailing party shall be entitled to
recover from the non-prevailing party costs and fees, including reasonable attorney's fees, incurred in conducting
the litigation. This Paragraph 17 shall survive Closing or termination of this Contract.

Escrow Agent; Closing Agent: Seller and Buyer authorize Escrow Agent and closing agent (collectively
"Agent") to receive, deposit, and hold funds and other items in escrow and, subject to Collection, disburse them
upon proper authorization and in accordance with Florida law and the terms of this Contract, including disbursing
brokerage fees. "Collection" or "Collected" means any checks tendered or received have become actually and
finally collected and deposited in the account of Agent. The parties agree that Agent will not be liable to any person
for misdelivery of escrowed items to Seller or Buyer, unless the misdelivery is due to Agent's willful breach of this
Contract or gross negligence. If Agent interpleads the subject matter of the escrow, Agent will pay the filing fees
and costs from the deposit and will recover reasonable attorneys' fees and costs to be paid from the escrowed
funds or equivalent and charged and awarded as court costs in favor of the prevailing party.

Professional Advice; Broker Liability: Broker advises Seller and Buyer to verify all facts and representations
that are important to them and to consult an appropriate professional for legal advice (for example, interpreting this
Contract, determining the effect of laws on the Property and this transaction, status of title, foreign investor
reporting requirements, the effect of property lying partially or totally seaward of the CCCL, etc.) and for tax,
property condition, environmental, and other specialized advice. Buyer acknowledges that all representations
(oral, written, or otherwise) by Broker are based on Seller representations or public records. Buyer agrees to rely
solely on Seller, professional inspectors, and government agencies for verification of the Property
condition and facts that materially affect Property value. Seller and Buyer respectively will pay all costs and
expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees at all levels, incurred by Broker and Broker's officers, directors,
agents, and employees in connection Wlth or arlsmg from SeIIer s or Buyer's mlsstatement or fallure to perform
contractual obllgatlons

waiadek Seller and Buyer each assume full responsibility for selecting and compensating their respective vendors.
This Paragraph will not relieve Broker of statutory obligations. For purposes of this Paragraph, Broker will be
treated as a party to this Contract. This Paragraph will survive closing.

Commercial Real Estate Sales Commission Lien Act: If the Property is commercial real estate as defined by
Section 475.701, Florida Statutes, the following disclosure will apply: The Florida Commercial Real Estate Sales
Commission Lien Act provides that when a broker has earned a commission by performing licensed services
under a brokerage agreement with you, the broker may claim a lien against your net sales proceeds for the
broker's commission. The broker's lien rights under the act cannot be waived before the commission is earned.

Brokers: The licensee(s) and brokerage(s) named below are collectively referred to as "Broker.” Instruction to
closing agent: Seller and Buyer direct Closing Agent to disburse at Closing the full amount of the brokerage
fees as specified in separate brokerage agreements with the parties and cooperative agreements between the
Brokers, except to the extent Broker has retained such fees from the escrowed funds. This Paragraph will not be
used to modify any offer of compensation made by Seller or listing broker to cooperating brokers.

Buyer ( ) ( ) and Seller ML) acknowledge receipt of a copy of this page, which is 6 of 8 pages.
VAC-14xxxx  Rev 3/25 ©2025 Florida Realtors®
Licensed to Alta Star Software and 1D1828074.447068

Software and added formatting © 2025 Alta Star Software, all rights reserved. « www.altastar.com ¢ (877) 279-8898



327
328

329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339

340
341
342
343
344
345
346

347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362

363

364
365
366

367

368

Seller's Sales Associate/License No. Buyer's Sales Associate/License No.
Seller's Sales Associate Email Address Buyer's Sales Associate Email Address
Seller's Sales Associate Phone Number Buyer's Sales Associate Phone Number
Listing Brokerage Buyer's Brokerage

Listing Brokerage Address Buyer's Brokerage Address

22. Addenda: The following additional terms are included in the attached addenda and incorporated into this Contract
(Check if applicable):
U A. Back-up Contract
U B. Kick Out Clause
U ¢. HOA Addendum
U b. other

23. Additional Terms:
Town Manager may extend closing date up to 30 days on behalf of Town.

* Closing is anticipated to be scheduled for a business day (M-F & non federal or local holiday) on or before
January 31, 2026

COUNTER-OFFER/REJECTION

L seller counters Buyer's offer (to accept the counter-offer, Buyer must sign or initial the counter-offered terms and
deliver a copy of the acceptance to Seller).
U Seller rejects Buyer's offer

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.

This Contract continues with Line 369 on Page 8 of 8.]

Buyer ( ) ( ) and Seller% acknowledge receipt of a copy of this page, which is 7 of 8 pages.
VAC-14xxxx  Rev 3/25 ©2025 Florida Realtors®
Licensed to Alta Star Software and 1D1828074.447068

Software and added formatting © 2025 Alta Star Software, all rights reserved. « www.altastar.com ¢ (877) 279-8898



369
370

371

372
373
374
375
376
377

378
379

380

381
382

383
384
385
386
387

388
389

390
391
392
393
394

This is intended to be a legally binding Contract. If not fully understood, seek the advice of an attorney
before signing.

ATTENTION: SELLER AND BUYER

CONVEYANCES TO FOREIGN BUYERS: Part lll of Chapter 692, Sections 692.201 - 692.205, Florida Statutes, 2023
(the "Act"), in part, limits and regulates the sale, purchase and ownership of certain Florida properties by certain buyers
who are associated with a "foreign country of concern”, namely: the People's Republic of China, the Russian
Federation, the Islamic Republic of Iran, the Democratic People's Republic of Korea, the Republic of Cuba, the
Venezuelan regime of Nicolas Maduro, or the Syrian Arab Republic. It is a crime to buy or knowingly sell property
in violation of the Act.

At time of purchase, Buyer must provide a signed Affidavit which complies with the requirements of the Act.
Seller and Buyer are advised to seek legal counsel regarding their respective obligations and liabilities under the Act.

Town of Ponce Inlet

Buyer: Date:
Print name: Lois Paritsky, Mayor

Buyer: Date:

Print name:

Buyer's address for purpose of notice:

Address: 4300 South Atlantic Avenue, Ponce Inlet, Florida 32127

Phone: 386-213-4240 Fax: Email: mdisher@ponce-inlet.org
BRM Property Holdings, LLC

Seller: %&%W, Vﬁ Date: 11-10-2025

Print name: Meq Mosher, Vice President

Seller: Date:

Print name:

Seller's address for purpose of notice:

Address: 1950 Laurel Manor Drive, Suite 130, The Villages, Florida 32162

Phone: 352-216-1783 Fax: Email: mmosher@circlem.org

Florida REALTORS® makes no representation as to the legal validity or adequacy of any provision of this form in any specific transaction. This standardized form should
not be used in complex transactions or with extensive riders or additions. This form is available for use by the entire real estate industry and is not intended to identify the
user as REALTOR®. REALTOR" is a registered collective membership mark which may be used only be real estate licensees who are members of the NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS"” and who subscribe to its Code of Ethics. The copyright laws of United States (17 U.S. Code) forbid the unauthorized reproduction of this
form by any means including facsimile or computerized forms.

Buyer ( ) ( ) and SellerWﬂ_) acknowledge receipt of a copy of this page, which is 8 of 8 pages.
VAC-14xxxx  Rev 3/25 ©2025 Florida Realtors®
Licensed to Alta Star Software and 1D1828074.447068

Software and added formatting © 2025 Alta Star Software, all rights reserved. « www.altastar.com ¢ (877) 279-8898




Meeting Date: 11/20/2025

Agenda Item: 12-A

Report to Town Council

Topic: First reading of Ordinance No. 2025-08 — Amendment to the
Land Use and Development Code (LUDC) Section 3.20 —
Farmer’s Market.

Summary: The proposed ordinance has been drafted in response to the
need for a clear and comprehensive definition of “Farmer’s
Markets™ as cited in Article 3, Section 3.20.1.A. of the Land
Use and Development Code (LUDC). The proposed
amendment also removes the word “minor” from Section
3.20.1.B. The Planning Board recommended unanimous
approval of the amendments at its October 28, 2025 meeting.
Please see the attached report for more information.

Suggested motion:  Approval of proposed Ordinance 2025-08,
amending LUDC Section 3.20 — Farmer’s
Market, and incorporating the revisions
recommended by the Planning Board, upon first
reading.

Requested by: Ms. Rippey, Principal Planner
Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director

Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager




0N N kW

N DN DN N = e e ek ek et e e ek
W= O OO NPk WN— OO

Item 12-A

MEMORANDUM

TOWN OF PONCE INLET, PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring, and fair in delivering community excellence
while ensuring Ponce Inlet obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar.

To: Michael E. Disher, AlcP, Town Manager
From: Patty Rippey, AICP, Principal Planner
Through: Darren Lear, AICP, Planning & Development Director

Date: November 7, 2025
Subject:  Ordinance 2025-08 - Amendment to LUDC Section 3.20 - Farmer’s Markets

MEETING DATE: November 20, 2025

INTRODUCTION

This proposed amendment has been drafted in response to the need for a clear and comprehensive
definition of “Farmer’s Markets” in Article 3, Section 3.20.1.A. of the Land Use and Development
Code (LUDC). The amendment also removes the word “minor” from Section 3.20.1.B.

AUTHORITY AND PROCESS

Pursuant to the LUDC Section 6.2.2.A, the Planning Board, .. .serves as the local planning agency
in accordance with the Community Planning Act (2011) F.S. § 163.3161 et. Seq.” Pursuant to
LUDC Section 6.2.2.D. “As the local planning agency, [the Board shall] ... review proposed land
development regulations, determine their consistency with the comprehensive plan, and make
recommendations to the town council as to whether the regulations should be adopted.” Pursuant
to LUDC Section 6.6.2., the Town Council shall hold a public hearing and approve, approve with
conditions, postpone, or deny the proposed text amendment. If approved on 1* reading at a public
hearing, the amendment will then be scheduled for a 2" reading at a public hearing for adoption.

DISCUSSION
The regulations for Farmer’s Markets govern the operational and site design standards for such
markets. The current Farmer’s Market definition reads as follows:

“The temporary or occasional outdoor retail sale of farm produce or seafood from
vehicles or temporary stands, typically located within a parking lot or an approved
location in the public right-of-way closed to vehicular traffic for that purpose.”



24
25
26
27
28
29
30

31
32
33
34
35

36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56

LUDC Amendment — Farmer’s Markets Page 2

This definition does not capture the full range of activities traditionally associated with Farmer’s
Markets. Staff utilized A Planner’s Dictionary (American Planning Association, 2004) which
provides definitions from planners working at the local, county and state level across the United
States. Drawing from these sources and additional research on Farmer’s Markets in Florida, staff
has drafted the following revised definition to provide greater clarity and comprehensiveness for
Section 3.20.1.A.

“An occasional or periodic market held in an open area, typically a parking lot or other
approved location closed to vehicular traffic for that purpose. Individual sellers may
offer items such as fresh produce and fruit, plants and flowers, artisan and handcrafted
goods, prepared food, specialty food, on-site prepared food and beverages for sale. All
sales occur from temporary stands or vehicles on-site.”

The other proposed change is to Section 3.20.1.B., which removes the word “minor” from the
permitting language. Farmer’s Markets are allowed by right in the Planned Waterfront District,
may be permitted as a minor special exception in the B-1, B-2, and PUD zoning districts, and as a
major special exception in the Public/Institutional zoning district. The allowable zoning districts
for Farmer’s Markets are listed in Section 2.40 — Table of Permitted Uses in the LUDC.

The Planning Board reviewed the proposed amendments at its meeting on October 28, 2025. After
thorough review and discussion, the Board asked that the definition also include the following: “A
Farmer’s Market must have at least 40% of the space reserved for fresh produce and fruit, plants
and flowers, other farm products, and artisan baked goods.” The Board voted 5-0 to forward the
revised amendment to the Town Council with a recommendation of approval. The updated
definition is now included in Ordinance 2025-08.

Comprehensive Plan
Staff reviewed the policies of the Comprehensive Plan and found that the proposed ordinance
maintains consistency with the Town’s vision and objectives.

Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 2025-08, amending LUDC Section 3.20 — Farmer’s
Market, and incorporating the revisions recommended by the Planning Board.

% E? / November 7, 2025

Patty Rippey, Principal Planner Date




0N LB W —

S B B DB W LW WWWWWUWULWWN NN ==/ === =
AW = OOV TN UNPHH WD~ OOV UNPIA WO OV WN A W — OO

ORDINANCE NO. 2025-08

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET,
FLORIDA, AMENDING THE LAND USE AND
DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARTICLE 3 USE REGULATIONS,
SECTION 3.20 FARMER’S MARKETS; PROVIDING FOR
CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY;
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Land Use and Development Code, Article 3, Use Regulations, Section
3.20 Farmer’s Markets provides a definition for Farmer’s Market; and

WHEREAS, the current definition does not capture the full range of activities traditionally
associated with Farmer’s Markets; and

WHEREAS, the Town desires to amend Article 3, Use Regulations, Section 3.20.1.A. of
the Land Use and Development Code to provide an updated definition of Farmer’s Markets for
clarity and comprehensiveness; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Board, in its capacity as the Local Planning Agency, has
determined that this ordinance is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and has recommended
approval of this ordinance to the Town Council; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council affirms that this ordinance is consistent with the
Comprehensive Plan and is in the best interest of the public welfare of the Town; and

WHEREAS, the Town has complied with all requirements and procedures of the LUDC
and Florida law in processing, noticing, and advertising this ordinance; and

WHEREAS, this ordinance is enacted under the general home rule and police powers of
the Town of Ponce Inlet.

NOTE: Underlined words constitute additions to the Town of Ponce Inlet Land Use
Development Code (LUDC) as amended by Ordinance 2025-08, strikethreugh constitutes
deletions, and asterisks (***) indicate an omission from the existing text of said LUDC as
amended which is intended to remain unchanged.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA:

SECTION 1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are hereby ratified and confirmed as being
true and correct and are hereby made a part of this ordinance.

Ordinance 2025-08
Page 1 of 4



45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69

70
71
72
73

74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81

82
&3
84
&5

SECTION 2. Incorporation of Amendments. The proposed amendments to Article 3,
Section 3.20 of the Land Use and Development Code are attached to this ordinance as Exhibit "A"
and are hereby incorporated into the text of this ordinance as though fully set forth herein verbatim
as amendments to the Land Use and Development Code.

SECTION 3. Codification. It is the intent of the Town Council of the Town of Ponce Inlet
that the provisions of this ordinance shall be codified. The codifier is granted broad and liberal
authority in codifying the provisions of this ordinance.

SECTION 4. Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, word, or
provision of this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of
competent jurisdiction, whether for substantive, procedural, or any other reason, such portion shall
be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the
validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

SECTION 5. Conflicts. In any case where a provision of this ordinance is found to be in
conflict with a provision of any other ordinance of this Town, this ordinance shall prevail.

SECTION 6. Effective date. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon
adoption by the Town Council of the Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida.

It was moved by and seconded by that said ordinance
be passed on first reading. A roll call vote of the Town Council on said motion resulted as follows:

Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1
Councilmember Milano, Seat #2
Councilmember White, Seat #3
Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4

Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5
Approved on first reading this  day of 2025.
It was moved by and seconded by

that said ordinance be passed on second reading. A roll call vote of the Town Council on said
motion resulted as follows:

Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1
Councilmember Milano, Seat #2
Councilmember White, Seat #3
Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4

Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5

Ordinance 2025-08
Page 2 of 4



86
87
88
&9
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99

Approved and adopted on second reading this day of

ATTEST:

Kim Cherbano, CMC
Town Clerk

Ordinance 2025-08
Page 3 of 4

2025.

Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida:

Lois A. Paritsky, Mayor



Exhibit A

Article 3 - USE REGULATIONS

SECTION 3.20. FARMER'S MARKETS
3.20.1 Applicability.

location closed to vehicular traffic for that purpose. Individual sellers may offer items such

as fresh produce and fruit, plants and flowers, artisan and handcrafted goods, prepared food,
specialty food, on-site prepared food and beverages for sale. All sales occur from temporary
stands or vehicles on-site. A Farmer’s Market must have at least 40% of spaces reserved for
fresh produce and fruit, plants and flowers, other farm products and artisan baked goods.

B. How permitted. See section 2.40, Table 2-5 (Table of Permitted Uses). Farmers markets are allowed
as a miner-special exception use if the following requirements and standards are in addition to any
generally applicable standards:

* %%

Page 4 of 4



Meeting Date: 11/20/2025

Agenda Item: 14-A

Report to Town Council

Topic: Approval of Task Assignment with Raftelis Financial
Consultants, Inc. for the Stormwater Utility Fee Implementation
(Phase 2).

Summary: Staff is requesting approval of a task assignment with
Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. for the implementation
of the stormwater utility fee. At a special Town Council
meeting held on June 25, 2025, Raftelis presented the
results of the feasibility study for the stormwater utility fee,
and the Town Council gave its consensus to include the
proposed Phase 2 implementation plan in the FY 25/26
budget. Please see the attached report and supporting
documentation for more information.

Suggested motion: Approval of the Task Assignment with Raftelis
Financial Consultants, Inc. for the Stormwater
Utility Fee Implementation (Phase 2), and
selection of the Non-Ad Valorem Special
Assessment billing method.

Requested by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager

Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager




Item 14-A

MEMORANDUM

OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER
The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar.

To: Town Council

From: Michael E. Disher, Aicp, Town Manager

Date: November 12, 2025

Subject: Approval of Task Assignment with Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. for the Stormwater

Utility Fee Implementation (Phase 2)

MEETING DATE:  November 20, 2025

Introduction

Staff is requesting approval of a task assignment with Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. for
implementation of the stormwater utility fee. Raftelis is under a continuing services contract with the
Town, and has previously provided valuable analyses on the Town’s water utility rates (2023) and the
feasibility study for the stormwater utility fee (2025). Raftelis presented the results of the feasibility
study at a special Town Council meeting on June 25, 2025, including rate structures, regulatory
requirements, revenue needs, cost projections, potential fee rates, and billing options. Following the
presentation, the Council gave its consensus to include the proposed Phase 2 stormwater utility
implementation plan in the FY 25/26 budget. The presentation from Raftelis and minutes from the June
25, 2025 meeting are both attached for reference.

Overview
The scope of services for Phase 2 is to implement the stormwater utility fee for the Town. The scope
builds upon the work in Phase 1 to include the following six tasks:

1. Data Development and Units of Service Finalization:
Raftelis will validate and refine impervious area measurements for residential and non-
residential properties to finalize the Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) and ensure accurate
billing data.

2. Final Rate Calculation:
Using verified data and revenue requirements, Raftelis will finalize rate recommendations
and develop a customizable Excel-based model to calculate stormwater rates and project cash
flow in the future.

3. Credit Program Development:
Raftelis will design a system allowing customers to reduce stormwater fees through credits




Task Assignment for Stormwater Fee Implementation Page 2

for privately owned and maintained roads and drainage systems, along with other
incentivized stormwater management practices.

4. Stormwater Utility Ordinance Development:
Raftelis will assist Town attorneys in drafting an ordinance to establish the stormwater utility,
enterprise fund, rate structure, credit program, and billing policies.

5. Public Outreach:
Raftelis will support Town staff in conducting public meetings and council presentations to
explain the stormwater fee, ordinance, rates, and implementation details.

6. Billing:
Raftelis will set up the stormwater utility fee billing mechanism using one of the two options
authorized by statute selected by the Town.

Option 1 — Utility Billing Support: If the Town selects the monthly utility billing option,
Raftelis will help integrate the stormwater utility fee into the Town’s existing water and
sewer billing systems.

Option 2 — NAVSA Billing Support: If the Town selects the Non-Ad Valorem Special
Assessment billing option, Raftelis will guide the Town through process to include the
stormwater fee on annual tax bills, and preparing required resolutions, notices, and
assessment rolls.

Billing

At the June 25, 2025 special meeting, Council members discussed the pros and cons of the two billing
methods. With the utility billing method, the annual fee is broken out over 12 billing periods with a
customer’s monthly utility bill. For owners of undeveloped property that do not currently have a Town
utility account, a special stormwater-only account will need to be created. This method typically comes
with a significant ongoing staff administration cost and is less effective in recouping delinquent
payments. With the annual billing method, the advantage is that its administration, including collection,
disbursement, and recovery of delinquent payments, is handled entirely by the Volusia Property
Appraiser and Tax Collector’s office through the taxing system, and is therefore more effective. The
disadvantage for customers is that the annual bill is paid all at once with their taxes rather than in
monthly payments.

At the June 25, 2025 special meeting, members of the Council and public spoke generally in favor of
the NAVSA billing method, but the Council did not vote specifically on this issue. If Council does
determine to proceed with the NAVSA billing method, it should make this determination now given
the statutory requirement to adopt of Resolution of Intent prior to January 1%.

This past July, Staff conducted an informal survey of city finance directors in Volusia County. The
majority prefer the annual NAVA collection method for its simplicity. The City of Edgewater is
exploring a transition from the monthly utility billing method to NAVA. The results of the survey are
attached for reference.

Fiscal Impact

The cost for Phase 2 varies according to which billing option is chosen: $48,486 for Option 1, and
$45,966 for Option 2. Sufficient funds for either option are budgeted and available under Public Works
Professional Services, Stormwater (# 001-0039-538-3100).



Task Assignment for Stormwater Fee Implementation Page 3

Recommendation

Staff recommends approval of the Task Assignment with Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. for the
Stormwater Utility Fee Implementation (Phase 2), AND recommends the Council select the Non-Ad
Valorem Special Assessment billing method (Option 2).

Attachments
1. Proposed Scope of Services
2. June 25, 2025 presentation
3. June 25, 2025 meeting minutes
4. Research of city billing methods



ATTACHMENT 1
RAFTELIS

October 24, 2025

Mr. Michael E. Disher, AICP
Town Manager

Town of Ponce Inlet

4300 South Atlantic Avenue
Ponce Inlet, FL. 32127

Subject: Tasks and Pricing for the Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida Stormwater Utility
Implementation

Dear Mr. Disher:

Raftelis has been pleased to work with the Town of Ponce Inlet (Town) this year to complete an
updated Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study. This study was used to determine the current estimated
revenue required by the Town’s stormwater program, estimate impervious area-based units of service
in the Town’s service area, and develop preliminary stormwater utility rates. This information was
compiled into a report, which summarized our financial analyses and estimated rates, and was
presented to the Ponce Inlet Town Council on June 25, 2025. It is our understanding that the Town
Council now wishes to complete the second phase of this project, the implementation of the
stormwater utility. This phase will include refinement of the impervious area data, finalization of the
rate in the financial model, credit program development, public and Town official outreach, and
support billing of the stormwater fee. The Town has not decided if they will bill the stormwater fee on
existing water and sewer utility bills or if they will bill via non ad-valorem special assessment.
Therefore, Raftelis has included two optional tasks for billing support, so that the Town can select the
option that they prefer.

To implement the Stormwater Utility, Raftelis recommends performing the following tasks:

1. Data Development and Units of Service Finalization — this task will build upon the estimated
Units of Service developed during Phase 1 of this project. While Volusia County does provide
some estimated impervious area data in tabular format, Raftelis recommends this effort be
validated through spatial impervious area measurements to ensure accuracy in billing. For
single-family residential (SFR) properties, impervious area on a statistically significant sample
of SFR properties is measured to finalize the the Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU). The
impervious area on developed non single-family residential (NSFR) properties, including
commercial, industrial, institutional and multi-family, will be also be measured.

2. Final Rate Calculation — Using the data developed in Task 1, Raftelis will finalize the
estimated rate developed in Phase 1 of this project. Raftelis will build an open-source Microsoft
Excel-based financial model that will include a tabular accounting method using revenue
requirements provided by the Town and developed in Phase 1 and impervious area-based units
of service data developed in Task 1. The model will include rate calculation and a pro forma
cash flow. The Town will be able to use the model to update revenue requirements and cash
flow projections as the stormwater program evolves. Users of this tool will be able to edit
inputs and assumptions, in addition to revenue requirements, to impact rates and down-stream
analyses. We have developed similar stormwater utility rate model tools for many agencies.

807 East Main Street, Suite 6-050
Durham, NC 27701

www.raftelis.com


mdisher
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 1


PONCE INLET, FLORIDA STORMWATER UTILITY 2
IMPLEMENTATION

Raftelis will provide training and, if desired, develop a user manual to assist the Town in using
the model. With these supporting tools, Town staff should be able to use the model
independently into the future.

3. Credit Program Development — this includes the development of a mechanism by which
customers can reduce their stormwater utility fee. The 2007 Preliminary Engineering Study
includes an evaluation of a credit for Private Roads where credits might be offered for private
maintenance of private road drainage, and for stormwater retention/detention treatment
areas that are privately owned and maintained. Two additional credit types may be
evaluated and implemented, with credits that allow the Town to incentivize stormwater
management in a way that helps the Town meet its stormwater program requirements.

4. Stormwater Utility Ordinance Development — this includes working with Town attorneys to
establish the Stormwater Utility, the Stormwater Enterprise fund and to codify the rate
structure, credit program and the billing mechanism and associated billing policies.

5. Public Outreach —Raftelis staff will collaborate with Town Staff to conduct up to two (2)
public outreach events to provide information on the stormwater fee implementation
project and provide details on the stormwater fee ordinance, rate components, credit
program and other program items. All presentation materials for these outreach events will
be prepared and provided by the project team. Additionally, the project team will plan on
attending two (2) Town Council meetings to support Town Staff in explaining the
stormwater utility fee, related ordinance, policies, and implementation efforts.

6. Option 1: Utility Billing Support - this includes tasks related to billing of the stormwater fee
on the current Town water and sewer bill, such as matching parcel based impervious area
measurements to utility accounts or creation of stormwater only accounts where existing
utility accounts may not currently exist, formatting of billing data to match utility billing
requirements, and loading of the stormwater billing data into the existing billing database.
OR Option 2: NAVSA Billing Support - Working closely with Town staff and the Volusia
County tax collector’s office, we will guide the Town through the Non-ad Valorem Special
Assessment process in order to meet the current schedule of billing on the annual tax bill in
November of 2026. Raftelis will assist with producing the language for the Resolution of Intent
prior to January 1, 2026 and presenting the resolution to Town Council for adoption. Raftelis
can draft the Public Notice letters and/or the stormwater utility portion of the Truth in Millage
(TRIM) Notice File in August 2026 and the Certified Assessment Roll prior to the September
15, 2026 deadline. The assessment will be based upon the rate model developed under Task 2,
which will link benefits received to the fee charged in accordance with rules and regulations
of the Florida Department of Revenue and Florida statutes.

Project Team

For this engagement, the Raftelis team will include myself as Project Director, Christina Conchilla
as Project Manager with Joe Williams and Mike Rocca as a Subject Matter Experts. The team will
also include staff consultants to perform various tasks.

Budget and Timeline

Raftelis estimates that these Tasks can be performed on a lump sum basis for a fee of $48,486 should
Option 1 of Task 6 be selected or $45,966 should Option 2 of Task 6 be selected. The fee breakdown
is shown in the table below. It is our practice to bill monthly. Total fees and expenses will be limited
to the not-to-exceed amount unless specific approval for an adjustment in scope is received. If



PONCE INLET, FLORIDA STORMWATER UTILITY 3
IMPLEMENTATION

additional modifications are required beyond those identified or related to those listed in the Scope
of Work, we can develop additional budget and scope or provide the services based on hourly rates
provided in our current executed Task Order.

Should you have any questions or concerns regarding the information provided above, please direct
them to me at jtavantzis@raftelis.com or at 919.475.5257.

Sincerely,
RAFTELIS FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS, INC.

v .

Jennifer Tavantzis
Vice President

Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida accepts the terms of this engagement letter:

Approved: Date:

Optional Task Selection:

Name of Signatory: Title:



mailto:jtavantzis@raftelis.com

PONCE INLET, FLORIDA STORMWATER UTILITY 4
IMPLEMENTATION

Stormwater Utility Implementation Fee Task Breakdown

Hours
Web In-person Total Fees and
Meetings Meetings JT cc MR JwW NM RG Total Expenses

14

1._ DaFa D_evelopment and Units of Service 1 0 Py 4 0 0 8 75 87 $12,055

Finalization
| 4

2. Final Rate Calculation 1 0 4 4 2 2 12 0 20 $4,800
v

3. Credit Program Development 1 0 2 10 2 2 16 0 30 $6,340
| 4

4. Utility Ordi D 1 0 4 6 0 0 12 0 18 $4,260
|4

5. Public Outreach 0 4 2 6 8 24 8 0 46 $11,511
v

6. Option 1: Utility Billing Support 1 0 4 12 0 4 30 0 46 $9,520
v

6. Option 2: NAVSA Billing Support 1 0 4 8 0 4 20 0 32 $7,000

Total Meetings / Hours 6 4 22 50 12 36 106 75 279
Hourly Billing Rate $240 $220 $240 $240 $150 $115
Total Professional Fees $5,280 $11,000 $2,880 $8,640 $15,900 $8,625

Total Fees and Expenses Option 1 $48,486
Total Fees and Expenses with Option 2 $45,966

N Jennifer Christina - T Norah
Project Team Tavantzis Conchilla Mike Rocca = Joe Williams McKinley

Rob Garrett



Town of
Ponce Inlet

June 25, 2025

ATTACHMENT 2

Whatis a
Stormwater
Utility?

Town wants to establish a new enterprise fund
that provides a stable, dedicated, equitable
source of funding for:

~ Meeting State and Federal stormwater regulatory
requirements

~» Operation and maintenance of the stormwater
system

» Improving water quality

» Reducing flooding

» Repairing and replacing aging infrastructure

6/25/25


mdisher
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 2


Impervious Area
Rate Structure

Impervious Area (lA) is
industry standard

~72% of utilities in Florida use

IA based rate structure
Rational Nexus

Impervious Area Defined

» Hard surfaces that don’t allow infiltration of stormwater
into the ground. Examples include:
»Rooftops
»Driveways
»Patios
»Private Sidewalks
»Parking Lots
»Compacted gravel
» Excluded: swimming pool water, open graded
aggregate and landscaping gravel

6/25/25



Customer Classes

* Developed properties were placed into one of the
following customer categories based upon Volusia
County Property Appraiser Data:

Single-family residential (SFR)

Multi-family residential (MFR) — condominiums
Single-family attached (SFA) — townhomes
Non-single family residential (NSFR) -

commercial, institutional and industrial properties

Single Family
Residences
(SFRs)

» Volusia County Tax Parcel Data

» Single dwelling unit on
individually owned lot

* ~1,200 SFR properties

Raftelis randomly sampled 400
SFR properties and got IA data

6/25/25



6/25/25

Equivalent
Residential Unit
(ERU)

« Billing unit for IA based rate
structures

»  Community specific

* Median IA on Single-family
residential (SFR) properties

7
SFR Impervious Area Distribution
Ponce Inlet SFR |A Distribution
" | Median = 2,863 sq. ft.
30
P 25
§ 20
E—J 15
£
. | |‘ | ‘
i || I. | I | Ill .IIIlII I| I | |II|II. ..| dy .o
$ ﬁi,. SESFESTTFFETTFTFESTSFTFESSFE S FSSSEEEES
Impervious Area (square feet)
8



SFR Rate Structure

* Impervious Area characteristics are fairly
similar within service area

» Flat Rate — 1 ERU for feasibility analysis OR

+ Tiering — could consider placing SFRs into
one of three tiers — high, medium, low during
implementation phase:

Can improve equity in this class

Can increase administrative burden

o

Impervious Area/Units of
Service Estimation Process

Volusia County Property Appraiser Computer
Assisted Mass Appraisal (CAMA) data — tabular
impervious area data — good for estimation, not
accurate enough for billing

Condos — additional CAMA data computations

required o 2),

6/25/25



Other Proposed Rate
Structures

» SFA — Single family attached or Townhomes — single
residence on single lot but ALSO a shared common
area space/parcel. A from common area should be

equally allocated amongst dwelling unit parcels

» Flat rate — 1 ERU per residence OR could

develop class wide average ERU during
implementation phase

NSFR — Non-single family residential — multi-family

(MFR), commercial, industrial, institutional

» Total IA divided by ERU value to calculate

billable ERUs

» For multi-family total ERUs may be further

allocated amongst dwelling units

Estimated Units of

Service

109

256,105

NSFR

49

SFR

1,219

1,219

MFR

403

1,115,734

2,025

12

13

6/25/25



6/25/25

Revenue
Requirements and

RE LT

O,

What can a Stormwater Utility fund?

Regulatory requirements

Operations & Maintenance (O&M)
of Stormwater System

Capital Improvement Projects —
depending on funding level

Reserves

14



What will the Stormwater Utility fund?
Regulatory Requirements

National Pollution Dischargg MS4 Permit Requires Implementation, Tracking and
Enmontion Syster (NABES -
Municipal Separate Storm Sewer

System (MS4) Permit

Driver for much of the City's
stormwater program and revenue
needs.

Unfunded federal mandate
Annual Reporting

Compliance required and
audited

Cycle V Forthcoming with New
Additional Requirements

15

What will the Stormwater Utility fund?
Operations and Maintenance

Inspection, Cleaning and Maintenance of:
292 inlets
3 stormwater ponds
2 swales
9,000 feet of storm pipe

Street Sweeping

Pollution Prevention for Municipal Facilities
Stormwater System Inventory Map

Public cleanup events

Public Education and Outreach
Construction Site Runoff Controls
Dedicated staff

Additional NPDES and GIS Needs

16

6/25/25



Total Revenue Requirements — FY 26

« \We evaluated funding the Town’s FY 26 Total Revenue Requirements
stormwater program at three funding ’ 368705.3903
scenarios: s 324286.6403
» Full funding — all O&M and all ’
Capital expenditures and all s
Reserves s

» Intermediate funding — all O&M and s
50% of Capital expenditures and all
Reserves

=Full mPartial - Intermediate = Partial - Low

I 241165.4081

FY 2026

» Low funding — O&M funding only R

17
Cost Projecti L Funding Opti
Operating and Maintenance Cost Projection
$300,000
52,0529 57.5415
52.3815
$250,000 165.4081 00.3704

$200,000

$150,000

$100,000

$50,000

$0

FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030
Fiscal Year
u Total - Personnel Expenses m Total - Operating Expenses Total - Expenses
18

18

6/25/25



Preliminary Monthly Rate — FY 26

* We calculated a preliminary monthly rate for all three funding

scenarios FY 26 Rounded Rates By Funding Scenario
$20.00
18
$18.00
16
$16.00
$14.00
12
$12.00
$10.00
$8.00
$6.00
$4.00
$2.00
$0.00

FY 2026

= Full mPartial - Intermediate = Partial - Low

19

Rate Comparison

Stormwater Rate Comparison of Neighboring Utilities

$20.00

Othés Neighboring Utilities' Aygrage $9.58 (excluding Ponce Inlet)

$16.00
$14.00
$12.00

$10.00

$8.00
$6.00
$4.00

$2.00

City of Fort City of Port  City of Cape  City of Gulf
Meade Richey Canaveral Breeze

$0.00

City of
Smyrna Beach Edgewater Beach Beach Full

City of Maderia Town of Bellair ~ Town of City of New

City of DaytonaCity of Ormond Ponce Inlet -
Beach Malabar |

mmmm Surveyed Utilities | A per ERU

Ponce Inlet -
Partial -
Intermediate

Ponce Inlet -
Partial - Low

IA (square feet)

20

6/25/25

10



Non-Ad Valorem
Assessment
Billing vs Utility
Billing

Non-Ad Valorem Special Assessment an

annual fee on Volusia County tax bill:
Highest collection rates — lien enforcement
Annual revenue
Easier to administer for parcel-based fee
Town must pay fee for municipal properties
Strict timeline:
Requires Resolution of Intent Prior to January 1,
2026
Requires draft assessment roll to Volusia County
for TRIM notice by July/August
Requires public hearing in September
Requires final assessment roll to Volusia County
by September 15th

21

Non-Ad Valorem
Assessment
Billing vs Utility
Billing

As a line item on Town’s monthly Water

and Sewer Bill:
High collection rates — water shut-off
enforcement
Monthly revenue
Seasonal and/or renter population — large
amount of water turn offs can impact
collections and revenue
Harder to administer — parcel to account
matching process — stormwater only billing
for developed parcels with no water bills
Town would not have to bill itself

22

6/25/25

11



6/25/25

Next Steps

Next Steps

Phase 2 Implementation Scope:
Data Development and Units of Service Finalization
Final Rate Calculation
Credit Program Development
Stormwater Utility Ordinance Development
Public Outreach
Utility Billing Support or NAVSA Billing Support

12



6/25/25

= RAFTELIS

Thank you!

Christina Conchilla: cconchilla@raftelis.com

13



ATTACHMENT 3

Town of Ponce Inlet
Town Council
Special Meeting Minutes
June 25, 2025

1. CALL TO ORDER: Pursuant to proper notice, Mayor Paritsky called the meeting to order
at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at 4300 South Atlantic Avenue, Ponce Inlet, Florida.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Paritsky led the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. ROLL CALL:
Town Council:
Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1
Councilmember Milano, Seat #2
Councilmember White, Seat #3
Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4
Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5

Staff Members Present:

Ms. Alex, Cultural Services Manager
Mr. Disher, Town Manager

Ms. Gjessing, Deputy Town Clerk
Chief Glazier, Police Chief

Ms. Hall, Assistant Finance Director
Ms. Hugler, Fire Department Office Manager/ PIO
Ms. McColl, Finance Director

Mr. Okum, IT Director

Chief Scales, Public Safety Director
Mr. Wargo, Public Works Director

4. Town of Ponce Inlet’s Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study presented by Raftelis
Financial Consultants, Inc. — Mr. Disher explained this study stems from ongoing discussions
on establishing a stormwater utility, noting that Ponce Inlet is the only jurisdiction in Volusia
County that does not currently have one. The creation of a stormwater utility provides a dedicated
source of revenue to fund stormwater related maintenance operations and more. A brief discussion
ensued regarding the history surrounding the need for a feasibility study, the recommendations
gathered from Boards and the Town Council, and the implementation to begin the study. Mr.
Disher introduced Ms. Christina Conchilla, Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc., who appeared via
Microsoft Teams and provided a presentation regarding the Town’s stormwater utility feasibility
study. The purpose of establishing a stormwater utility includes meeting regulatory requirements,
improving water quality and operation/maintenance of the stormwater system, reducing flooding,
and mending or replacing aging infrastructure. She explained impervious areas do not allow
infiltration of stormwater into the ground and therefore when completing a study, the number of
impervious areas makes a significant difference. Raftelis, Inc. randomly sampled 400 single-

Town Council June 25, 2025
Special Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 3


mdisher
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 3


40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82

family residences (SFR) in Town to compile impervious area data. This data forms the billing unit,
also known as the Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU). Due to the data collected, the Town is
presented with two options: implement a flat rate fee for all residents or “tier” the properties based
on their impervious area. She further explained the difference between the two options, elaborated
on the estimations, and described the difference in analyzing a single-family home versus all other
classes. Councilmember White and Vice-Mayor Smith questioned what would happen for
properties which are disproportionately contributing or not contributing to the overall stormwater
concerns; Ms. Conchilla stated there are appeal processes for outlying properties. Ms. Conchilla
stated jurisdictions tend to favor the flat rate option instead of the tiering system. She reviewed
State and Federal stormwater regulatory requirements which the stormwater utility addresses and
the operations and maintenance which will be funded through the utility. She showed the projected
funding options, rate comparisons to other jurisdictions, and discussed non-ad valorem assessment
billing versus utility billing. The non-ad valorem assessment billing would be conducted through
Volusia County and individuals would be billed annually in conjunction with their property taxes.
The utility billing option would include a new line item on the Town’s monthly water and sewer
bills. Ms. Conchilla reviewed the next steps on the Phase 2 implementation scope.

Mr. Disher questioned whether a public hearing would be held annually if the Town chose the
non-ad valorem assessments. Ms. Conchilla explained a public hearing would only need to be held
if the rate were to change; she recommended the Town Council adopt a range in rates so if
incremental changes are made, a public hearing is not required each time. Mayor Paritsky inquired
about past impacts of new legislation imposed by the Florida legislature related to stormwater
maintenance and enterprise funds. Ms. Conchilla responded that, in her experience, there has not
been a large imposition on rate capping and while some requirements become cumbersome, they
are typically willing to work on a schedule with communities. Councilmember Villanella
questioned whether a subdivision designed with substantial stormwater control would reduce
demand on the system; Ms. Conchilla confirmed such a subdivision would be provided with a
reduction in their fee. Councilmember White inquired on funding options and timelines and
questioned how frequently customers request their water be shut off when they leave Town or
request credit for such reasons. Councilmember Milano commented on the unknown longevity of
FEMA and the billing options. Mayor Paritsky opened public participation — Mr. Steve Field, 6
Mar Azul, questioned the implementation timeline, the cost of the project, and minimum water
uses. He questioned the administrative effort that will be required and asked if the Las Olas
subdivision would be exempt for having their own water retention systems in place; Mr. Disher
clarified places including Las Olas and Harbour Village will not be exempt, however they will
receive credit. Ms. Barbara Davis, Ponce Inlet resident, encouraged using a flat rate and the non-
ad valorem assessment.

Councilmember White stated he is inclined to select the monthly tier billing system but inquired
on the additional administrative efforts behind this option. A discussion between Ms. Hall and the
Town Council included the projected administrative efforts, the difference in process between an
annual fee versus monthly fee, and the information that would be required to properly assess each
property. Councilmember Milano commented on the additional burden that would fall to condo

Town Council June 25, 2025
Special Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 3



&3
84
85
86
87
88
&9
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115

116
117
118
119
120

associations if the fee were billed monthly. Vice-Mayor Smith asked if the Town’s cashflow would
be affected with the monthly billing and Councilmember White questioned the timeline of when
the Town would begin to receive funds, depending on which billing option is selected. Ms.
Christine Pierce, 66 Inlet Harbor Road, suggested the Town create a database compiled of all
residents and bill everyone directly, monthly. Mr. Steve Field, 6 Mar Azul, inquired whether this
would be sent as a separate bill monthly or added to the existing utility bill; he also voiced his
recommendation to see this fee on the tax bill. Ms. Conchilla stated through observation over the
years, the direct monthly billing system is less effective as there are no enforcement procedures in
place to guarantee payment; she stated the most effective methodology has been the non-ad
valorem assessment. Ms. Hall explained a general assumption on the additional administrative
work that would go into a monthly billing system. Mayor Paritsky voiced her support for an annual
billing system as the burden would fall to Volusia County to collect and enforce payment instead
of putting the additional burden and cost on the Town staff. Discussions continued on monthly
versus annual billing, the potential impact on the annual tax rate, and enforcement options. Mr.
Craig Sandman, 37 Ocean Way Drive, voiced his support for annual billing. Mr. Steve Field, 6
Mar Azul, inquired about the Town’s history of placing liens on properties for unpaid tax bills;
Vice-Mayor Smith clarified Volusia County implements their own liens for delinquent tax bills.
Councilmember White questioned the Town’s overall responsibilities if Volusia County were to
implement the annual billing. Councilmember Milano spoke in favor of the annual billing option
and questioned whether the decision must be made now; Ms. Conchilla stated the billing
methodology would need to be determined by January 1, 2026.

Council consensus to include the proposed Phase 2 stormwater utility implementation plan in the
FY 25/26 budget.

The Town Council briefly discussed gathering information from surrounding municipalities on
which billing method they use or would recommend.

5. ADJOURNMENT - With no further business, Mayor Paritsky adjourned the meeting at
3:40 PM.

Respectfully submitted by:

Kim Cherbano

Kim Cherbano, CMC / Town Clerk
Prepared by: Stephanie Gjessing, Deputy Town Clerk

Attachment(s): Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Presentation by Raftelis, Inc.

Town Council June 25, 2025
Special Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 3



Stormwater Utility Fee Research:

ATTACHMENT 4

ANNUALLY
CITIES U?SJ?,IILIEEL NON-AD VALOREM INFORMATION RECEIVED FROM CITIES
ASSESSMENT

Daytona Beach X

Debary X "It works well and the payments flow in with the property tax payments from the county. Our
commercial stormwater fee is based on impervious surface and that information is in the
property appraiser database."

DeLand X

Deltona X Deltona prefers NAVA because they are guaranteed the money, and don't have to worry about
the issue with rental accounts that are vacant, etc. and reverting back to the owners accounts.
According to the Finance Director, John McKinney, "it is worth the small price that we much
pay the tax collector for the NAVA fee."

Edgewater X Edgewater bills customers monthly for stormwater fees; however, they have made a few
unsuccessful attempts to change to NAVA collection method. The main reasons they have
wanted to change include the following: 1) Improved cash flow - the City would receive the
majority of their stormwater funds during the first 4 months of the fiscal year; 2) Higher
collection rates and City would spend less resources (time an money) trying to collect; 3) Tax
bill is paid by the owner instead of the renter; and 4) Does not require an active utility service.

Holly Hill X Holly Hill prefers the NAVA. "There is a fee; however, this method assures payment and
timing of receipt of the stormwater fees."

Lake Helen X Lake Helen uses NAVA. It is "just one less thing to worry about where you just have to
identify the applicable parcels, give the property appraiser the assessment, and then basically
set it and forget it as opposed to having to deal with properly billing directly yourselves. I feel
like the cost of administering is more than covered, aside from just keeping things as simplified
as possible in the event of turnover, vacancies. etc."

New Smyrna Beach X

Orange City X Orange City bills stormwater fees annually via NAVA and prefers this method as the Property
Appraiser maintains an inventory of impervious area in their database, which is used to
calculate the total billable EBU. They use the TRIM as the 1" class notice for rate increases
and they build-in the 4% discount and $1.32/parcel fee into their rates.

Ormond X

Port Orange X

South Daytona X

Notes:

1) Daytona Beach Shores and Oak Hill do not charge stormwater fees; however, Oak Hill is currently in the process of having a stormwater fee study completed by Mead and Hunt.

2) County Tax Collector's Office explained the charge is $1.32/parcel fee for NAVA and it would be eligible for 4% discount unless Town's ordinance states it is exempt (legal would
have to verify this is acceptable).




Meeting Date: 11/20/2025

Agenda Item: 16

Report to Town Council

Topic: From the Town Manager

Summary: Please see attached report.

Requested by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager

Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager




Item 16

MEMORANDUM

OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar.

To: Town Council
From: Michael E. Disher, AiCP, Town Manager
Date: November 15, 2025

Subject: ~ Town Manager’s Report

MEETING DATE: November 20, 2025

1. Volusia County Council meeting on 11-04-25:

o Item G - Acceptance of donation to the Marine Science Center. The $20,000 donation is
required by USFWS to mitigate the removal of an inactive nest on vacant commercial
property in Daytona Beach. The donation will be used to enhance the MSC’s bald eagle
exhibit, including new signage, habitat upgrades, and a life-sized eagle nest display.

o Item 9 - Ordinance 2025-23 - Amending the Local Specialty Licenses Ordinance.

o Item 12 — Update on the Park Volusia program for beach parking, fiscal analysis, and
request for direction on potential changes and improvements.

o Item 13 - Discussion of proposed charter amendment regarding a rural growth boundary
and creating an exclusive method of voluntary annexation.

2. Volusia County Council meeting on 11-18-25:

o Item 4 — Public Hearing — Approval of Votran service changes for improved service &
efficiencies (removing Ponce Inlet fixed route service and others)

3. Public Works has completed swale maintenance in Seagull Landing, near the intersection of
Jana Drive and Sea Haven Drive. Crews removed sediment buildup, re-graded sections to
restore proper flow, and cleared vegetation to improve stormwater drainage. The work
enhances water movement through the area and helps prevent standing water following heavy
rainfall.

4. Public Works has begun obtaining quotes for a number of budgeted projects, including the new
playground fence and tennis court resurfacing at Pollard Park, building repainting at Davies
Lighthouse Park, the Police station A/C, and the new stabilize intersection aprons on Sailfish
Drive. Look for these projects to be started soon.


https://vcservices.vcgov.org/agenda/agendas/20251104/agenda.htm
https://vcservices.vcgov.org/agenda/agendas/20251104/Item-G-13051.pdf
https://vcservices.vcgov.org/agenda/agendas/20251104/Item-13-13086.pdf
https://vcservices.vcgov.org/agenda/agendas/20251118/agenda.htm
https://vcservices.vcgov.org/agenda/agendas/20251118/Item-04-13133.pdf

5. Building permit activity:

Jan | Feb | Mar | Apr |May |Jun |Jul |Aug |[Sep |Oct |Nov |Dec |Total | Avg
Permit
applications | 123 | 122 [ 137 | 164 |147 | 150 |110[109 |107 |[114 1,283 | 128
Permits
issued 90 (111 [133 |149 |144 |132 [101|113 |102 |97 1,172 | 117
Planreviews |93 | 113 | 125 | 149 [138 |161 [123|115 |[102 |97 1,216 | 122
Inspections | 246 |236 |252 |313 |270 |285 [248]282 |247 302 2,681 | 268

6. Town Hall will be closed Thursday, November 27" and Friday, November 28™ for the
Thanksgiving holiday.



	REGULAR MEETING
	item 8.pdf
	8-A.pdf
	The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community


	item 9-A.pdf
	2.Combined - TC- Letter of Support_ James Milton Hunt Lighthouse Point Park.pdf
	The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community


	item 12-A.pdf
	ADP194A.tmp
	ORDINANCE NO. 2025-08
	AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARTICLE 3 USE REGULATIONS, SECTION 3.20 FARMER’S MARKETS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR ...
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA:
	SECTION 3.20. FARMER'S MARKETS
	3.20.1 Applicability.





	item 14-A.pdf
	4. Att 3 - 06-25-25 Special mtg minutes (Stormwater Utility Study).pdf
	Attachment 1 - PonceInlet_StormwaterUtilityFeasiblity_06252025.pdf
	Slide 1: Town of Ponce Inlet  Stormwater Feasibility Study June 25, 2025
	Slide 2: What is a Stormwater Utility?   
	Slide 3: Impervious Area Rate Structure
	Slide 4: Impervious Area Defined
	Slide 5: Customer Classes
	Slide 6: Single Family Residences (SFRs)
	Slide 7: Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU)
	Slide 8: SFR Impervious Area Distribution
	Slide 9: SFR Rate Structure
	Slide 10: Impervious Area/Units of Service Estimation Process
	Slide 11: Other Proposed Rate Structures
	Slide 12: Estimated Units of Service
	Slide 13: Revenue Requirements and Rates
	Slide 14: What can a Stormwater Utility fund?
	Slide 15: What will the Stormwater Utility fund? Regulatory Requirements 
	Slide 16: What will the Stormwater Utility fund? Operations and Maintenance
	Slide 17: Total Revenue Requirements – FY 26
	Slide 18: Cost Projection – Lower Funding Option – O&M only
	Slide 19: Preliminary Monthly Rate – FY 26
	Slide 20: Rate Comparison
	Slide 21: Non-Ad Valorem Assessment Billing vs Utility Billing   
	Slide 22: Non-Ad Valorem Assessment Billing vs Utility Billing
	Slide 23: Next Steps
	Slide 24: Next Steps    
	Slide 25: QA
	Slide 26: Thank you!  Christina Conchilla: cconchilla@raftelis.com  






